MINISTRY OF NATIONAL EDUCATION "1 DECEMBRIE 1918" UNIVERSITY OF ALBA IULIA

Accounting Doctoral School

PhD THESIS

(Summary)

Scientific coordinator:

Prof. Burja Vasile, PhD.

PhD Candidate:

Miron Vasile Cristian Ioachim

Alba Iulia

MINISTRY OF NATIONAL EDUCATION "1 DECEMBRIE 1918" UNIVERSITY OF ALBA IULIA

Accounting Doctoral School

ANALYSIS MODELS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE IN THE ENERGY SECTOR BASED ON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Scientific coordinator:	
Prof. Burja Vasile, PhD.	
	PhD Candidates
	Miron Vasile Cristian Ioachim

Alba Iulia















Invest in people!

Project financed by FONDUL SOCIAL EUROPEAN through

Human Resources Development 2007-2013 Sectoral Operational Programme

Priority Axis 1 "Education and training in support of growth and development of knowledge-based society"

Key Area of Intervention 1.5 "Doctoral and post-doctoral research support"

Contract no.: POSDRU/187/1.5/S/155450





PARTENERI



Universitatea "1 Decembrie 1918" din Alba Iulia

Universitatea Ștefan cel Mare Suceava

This PhD thesis has been prepared with the financial support of the project "Quality European Doctorate - EURODOC", Contract no. POSDRU/187/1.5/S/155450, project co-financed by the European Social Fund through the Sectoral Operational Programme "Human Resources Development" 2007-2013.

CONTENTS

KEYWORDS	4
CONTENTS OF THE THESIS	5
INTRODUCTION	7
General context of research	7
The importance of research	10
Research methodology	12
Short content of the chapters	17
FINAL CONCLUSIONS, LIMITS AND PERSPECTIVES OF RESEARCH	22
Final conclusions of research	22
Own contributions	31
Limitations of the research	33
Proposals	35
Perspectives of the research	36
REFERENCES	38

KEYWORDS

Financial position, economic performance, energy sector, financial statements, balance sheet, profit and loss account.

CONTENTS OF THE THESIS

List of figuers	5
List of tables	7
INTRODUCTION	8
General context of research	8
The importance of reseearch	11
Research methodology	14
Short content of the chapters	18
CHAPTER 1. Annual financial statements - source of information for the eco	nomic and
financial analysis	23
1.1. Incursion on the current state of research on financial statements	23
1.2. Theoretical facts related to the financial statements	29
1.3. National and international regulations regarding the finanical statements	
1.4. Content of financial statements and their valencies on stakeholders	39
CHAPTER 2. Financial position and economic performance - conceptual delimit	ation47
2.1. Financial position and its relevance to the stakeholders	47
2.1.1 Global solvency analysis	53
2.1.2 General liquidity analysis	55
2.1.3 Indebtness degree analysis	57
2.2. Economic performance and the interest of stakeholders	60
CHAPTER 3. Financial position analysis models	70
3.1. Structure rates for appreciation the financial position	70
3.1.1. The structure rates of assets	73
3.1.2. The structure rates of liabilities	79
3.2. Resources management and its influence on the financial position	85
3.3. Financial equilibrum - an important objective for stakeholders	91
3.3.1 Analysis models based on the net situation	94
3.3.2 Analysis models based on the working capital	100
3.3.3 Analysis models based on the need working capital	104
3.3.4 Analysis models based on the net treasury	107
3.3.5 Analysis models based on the financial balance sheet	109
3.4 Risk analysis models	112
3.4.1 Bankruptcy risk analysis based on Altman model	116
3.4.2 Bankruptcy risk analysis based on Conan-Holder model	118

3.4.3 Bankruptcy risk analysis based on Taffler model	121
3.4.4 Bankruptcy risk analysis based on Robertson model	123
CHAPTER 4. Economic performance analysis models	125
4.1. Profit and loss account – sinthetic expression of absolute return	125
4.2. Rates of return and the relative appreciation of the performance	146
4.3. The analysis of the performance based on the economic value added	161
4.4. Analysis of companies' economic growth capacity	175
4.5. Econometric model of performance assessment in the energy sector	183
CHAPTER 5. Assessing performance in the context of sustainable development	187
5.1. Social responsibility and corporate governance in evaluating the performance of entities	
5.2. Environment indicators and their relevance on the performance	202
FINAL CONCLUSIONS, LIMITS AND PERSPECTIVES OF RESEARCH	207
Final conclusions of research	207
Own contributions	216
Limitations of the research	219
Proposals	220
Perspectives of the research	222
REFERENCES	224
ANNEXES	253

INTRODUCTION

General context of research

The current economic context, which is in constant change and economic and social reorganization, generates complex and detailed informational needs, but adapted to the informational needs of each beneficiary. Practically, contemporary society is characterized by redefining concepts, major changes in the system of values, reinterpretations of norms, all of these giving birth to diverse and original research directions. Current reality proves that these aspects manifest themselves in all the sides of economic, social, cultural, political activity, so that neither the financial sphere of business is excluded from this concept.

In this context, our paper, entitled "Models of analysis of financial position and economic performance in the energy sector based on the information provided by the Annual Financial Statements", aims to radiograph the annual financial statements (both as concept and the empirical way in which they pursue their intended purpose) in the process of assessing the financial position and economic performance. Thus, the integration of research in the current general context is given by the approach that follows the informational contribution that the annual financial statements bring to the different categories of stakeholders, but also by proposing ways to improve and increase the adaptability of the annual financial statements to the informational needs of the various stakeholder categories.

The concept of stakeholder and its derivative concepts are often found in the specialized literature. Since the 1980s, with the first research on this concept (Freeman, R. E., 1984¹), business theory and practice have developed different approaches. Most of the specialized studies subscribe to the idea that stakeholders' decisions are influenced by the actions of the company and vice versa. From this approach comes the idea that any information published by a company will be the basis for decision making by the stakeholders. Often, stakeholders outside the entity rely in making their decisions on the information provided by the annual financial statements.

At the same time, decisions can also be made on the basis of compilation of the information produced by the accounting profession (and found in the annual financial

¹ Freeman, R. E., (1984), *Strategic management: a stakeholder approach*, Boston, Pitman, ©1984;

statements) and information from other fields (technical, legal, human resources etc.). Moreover, there is an emerging tendency of accounting to adapt to other directions of business evolution. An example of this is the concept of sustainable accounting (environmental accounting, emissions accounting), whose analysis and dissemination is required, especially in the energy field. This concept (which itself can open new research directions) is only a component of the approach known as "sustainable development" (Milne, M.J., et al., 2009²).

Having in view the aspects mentioned above, we can state that the annual financial statements are far from being perfect; they are perfectible. Moreover, in economies in which financial reporting is carried out under a rigid framework imposed by law (as in the case of Romania), we can say that these financial statements are built to respond to a single category of stakeholders: governments. This aspect, as well as the importance of information as a neo-factor of production, makes us advocate for the improvement of the annual financial statements so that they best respond to the informational needs of all stakeholder categories.

The topicality of research is supported primarily by the frequent changes in financial reporting in recent years, with significant implications for the ways of expressing and interpreting the concepts of financial position and economic performance.

The financial position of an economic entity is a concept that may have different interpretations, depending on the stakeholder performing its analysis. In the energy sector, which is considered to be of high importance in the national economy, we consider that the most important stakeholder is the state, because ensuring the functioning of this sector is a basic condition for the development of other sectors within the national economy. Therefore, we can look at the informational needs of the other categories of stakeholders from the perspective of the condition "sine qua non" of the state regarding the functioning in optimal parameters of this sector, which is manifested as follows: the operation of the sector involves attracting investors, the functioning of the sector implies the existence of human resources, the functioning of the sector can not be ensured without the existence of commercial relationships involving suppliers and customers, and for the operation of the sector, there are often used various sources of financing. All these aspects give birth to categories of stakeholders interested on the parameters

² Milne, M.J., Tregidga, H. and Walton, S. (2009), "Words not actions! The ideological role of sustainable development reporting", Accounting, Auditing & Accountability Journal, Vol. 22 No. 8, pag. 1211–1257;

in which the entities in the energy sector operate, one of the areas of interest being the financial position of the entities that fall within its scope.

The analysis of an economic entity is the act whereby initiated or uninitiated individuals, whether independent or not, are trying to assess the extent to which the analysed entity meets its objectives in the scope of analysis, in order to extract the information necessary to properly substantiate their decisions. Regardless of the field in which the analysis of an economic entity (economic, financial, commercial, legal, technical, personnel, informational, environmental etc.) is overlapped (or includes) with the concept of "performance" (economic, financial, environmental, commercial, technical etc.).

The measure of economic and financial performance is generally given by the indicators from the profit and loss account. According to IFRS, this document is known as "a statement of profit or loss and other elements of the global result of the period" or "a statement of income and expense". We can appreciate that any element that influences the indicators in this component of the annual financial statements will also affect the economic and financial performance of the entity. In particular, indicators such as net profit, sales revenue, results on different types of activities etc. are considered. Performance is also appreciated through other indicators deriving from the annual financial statements provided by the legislation. Any influence factor will also be reflected in the change of these categories of indicators.

The performance of entities depends on the existence and intensity of the manifestation of factors belonging to the entity's internal environment (marketing, production, management etc.) or factors outside the entity (national and international economic context, competition, interest or demand for products, services of the entity etc.). A pertinent performance analysis should not be limited to simply studying the components of the annual financial statements, but must go further so as to determine the influence of each factor on performance. These steps fall mainly in the responsibility of management, which has to decide what actions to follow starting from the analysis of the influence of each factor on the realised performance, in order to correct the negative influences and to maximize the action of the positive influence factors.

The analysis of the concept of financial balance continues to be a topical concern of financial-accounting researchers, due to its usefulness in assessing the financial position of an entity. The conception according to which the financial position of an economic entity is expressed by the indicators presented in the balance sheet is no longer up to date. The theory and

practice in the financial-accounting field has developed a number of specific practices expressing the financial position as well as other aspects. Thus, the balance sheet (which ultimately presents nothing but the patrimonial structure of an entity) remained the supplier of raw data to apply these practices.

Risk, as a concept found in the economic sphere of business, is a field of analysis often approached by financial-accounting researchers. Even though it is often viewed alongside profitability and value, as a basic element of finance (Stancu, I., 2007³), the risk has valences that often make it useful in analyzing other aspects of the economic sphere of business, such as its financial position and economic performance. From these valences, we consider the most appropriate for this purpose to analyze the ability of an entity to avoid bankruptcy, which is why we opted for analyzing different forms of bankruptcy risk, as a tool for assessing the financial position.

Treating all these aspects (and others) makes this paper a solid tool in the process of assessing financial position and economic performance based on the data provided by the annual financial statements, in the optics of providing a surplus of information to stakeholders, aspects that prove the alignment to the current general context. All these aspects represent in fact the **motivation** behind this research.

The importance of research

Annual financial statements have been and continue to be a major area of interest to financial and accounting professionals and not only. This, reinforced by the frequent changes in the legislation, gives a lasting note to the studies that deal with this concept. In the present approach, we intend to highlight the main features that should be characterizing the annual financial statements so that they represent a solid source of information for all categories of users, considering that currently the only category of users who are fully informed is the state.

The importance of researching the issues related to the annual financial statements is easy to see from the first chapter of the paper. Thus, the first two subchapters must represent a source of motivation for **accounting professionals** (those responsible for preparing and presenting the

³ Stancu, I., Bălu, F., (2007), Utilizarea metodologiei VaR pentru măsurarea și prevenirea riscului valutar, Revista ECTAP, articol disponibil la http://store.ectap.ro/articole/54.pdf accesat în data de 04.11.2015;

annual financial statements) in order to cause them to present as much information as possible in the annual financial statements to provide for the decision makers a solid base. It is also of great importance to **researchers in the field**, those who can have a vision through which they open new directions for approaching the annual financial statements and also for **professional bodies** that have the power to propose solutions to improve financial reporting. Last but not least, the study presents also the importance for the legislators in order to make them aware of the fact that other categories of users of information extracted from the annual financial statements are entitled to a high level of information.

In the analysis of an economic entity, any interested party channels its attention to certain aspects that are useful to it in making decisions. Among these aspects, the financial position (together with economic performance) represent an important area of analysis for most stakeholder categories. Starting from the premise that a sound financial position is a basic condition for the compliance with the principle of continuity of activity (objective pursued by the majority of stakeholders in a solid economic and financial environment), it can be said that the analysis of this concept and its relevance for the stakeholders is always topical.

The importance of analyzing the concept of financial position and its influence on stakeholder decisions is reinforced by the large-scale study conducted by Martínez-Carrascal, C., and Ferrando, A., (2009)⁴, which demonstrated that the stakeholder investors' actions may be significantly influenced by the financial position of entities from thesphere of analysis.

From this point of view, the importance of our paper is highlighted in terms of the used approaches, aiming at a basic goal, namely providing more information for different **stakeholder categories**.

The annual financial statements are the entity's main business card in order to assess the financial position by the stakeholders. An important aspect that they are pursuing is the existence of a solid financial position, which, in practice, is manifested through the financial balance. This paper seeks to analyze the financial position of the romanian companies that are representative to the energy sector based on specific indicators used for assessing financial balance. In order to reflect these aspects, indicators such as net situation, working capital, the need for working capital, net treasury etc. were taken into account.

⁴ Martínez-Carrascal, C., şi Ferrando, A., (2009), *The impact of financial position on investment: an analysis for non-financial corporations in the euro area*, Paper provided by Banco de Espana in its series Banco de Espana Working Papers with number 0820;

The problem of profitability analysis divides the mass of theoreticians and practitioners from the economic and financial sphere of business into two camps: those who support the principles of analysis based on absolute indicators and those who rely mainly on the indicators of relative appreciation of profitability (Mica, I. G., 2009⁵). In our opinion, these two approaches both provide a certain amount of information for the users of the annual financial statements, they do not exclude each other, on the contrary, they complement each other and ultimately contribute to better informing the stakeholders, a basic condition for taking optimal decisions. Even if the analysis based on indicators that assess profitability in relative size has the undeniable advantage of making it easier to perform comparative analyzes between entities that have some common elements (space comparisons), there are many studies that highlight the superior utility of the indicators in absolute measure, even in spheres such as the expression of hidden volatility in the financial markets (Giles, D. E., 2007⁶). In addition, correlations between the volatility of the financial markets and the indicators in absolute measure of the profitability are highlighted by other authors (Franses, P. H., et. al., 2002⁷). Thus, the approach proposed in this paper is of great importance also due to the fact that the two methods of assessing profitability are treated as complementary.

Research methodology

Taking into account the high importance of the concept of financial position and economic performance, it is necessary to carry out its analysis starting from the main objectives imposed by any scientific research: highlighting the current state of knowledge in this field, empirical analysis in order to render the practical way of manifestation of concepts, but also proposing alternative solutions based on empirical analysis and the vision of each researcher.

⁵ Mica, I. G., (2009), *Profitability And Risk. Essential Coordinates Of Our Existence*, Article provided by Romanian-American University in its journal Romanian Economic and Business Review, Volume 4, Issue 4, pp. 21-30:

⁶ Giles, D. E., (2007), *Some Properties of Absolute Returns as a Proxy for Volatility*, Paper provided by Department of Economics, University of Victoria in its series Econometrics Working Papers with number 0706;

⁷ Franses, P. H., et. al., (2002), *Modeling and Forecastin Outliers and Level Shifts in Absolute Returns*, Article provided by John Wiley & Sons, Ltd. in its journal Journal of Applied Econometrics, Volume 17, Issue 5, pp. 601-616;

In order to bring to light the current state of knowledge, we reffered to the review of some specialized bibliographical references, aiming at highlighting the current conceptions regarding the studied aspects.

The empirical analysis has started from the importance of the energy sector in the national economy (the analyzed companies have accumulated a turnover of about 5% of the Romanian Gross Domestic Product and about 20% of the Gross Domestic Product obtained in the branch of industry) both as a macroeconomic value creation system and in terms of the importance of this sector for other economic and social sectors in Romania.

Considering these aspects, we believe that the paper has been compiled through a combination of *qualitative research* with *quantitative research*.

Research on financial position and economic performance can not be summed up to its analysis in a rigid way, referring strictly to the opinions of various authors in the specialized papers. This analysis should be carried out by referring to the informational needs of different categories of stakeholders, with relevance to the areas of interest within the analyzed economic sector.

Thereby, in this paper, both *deductive research* (starting from general and comprehensive concepts, descending to the expression of these concepts in current trends, in legislation and in the specialized literature, appealing to their manifestation in the energy sector and their confirmation), applied in all the chapters of the paper (especially in Chapters 1 and 5), as well as the *inductive research* (starting from the reality existing in the empirical analyzes, trying to identify regularities of manifestation of these realities and the formulation of hypotheses that can be converted into theories by confirmation), also applied in all chapters of the paper (with a higher intensity in Chapters 2, 3 and 4).

Specifically, the following research methods were used in the present paper:

- *literature review (descriptive method)*: given the fact that the literature abounds in various studies dealing with the informational power of the financial statements, as well as the concepts of financial position and economic performance, the present paper contains in all the chapters a theoretical component focused on the presentation of concepts considered significant in relation to the studies subject, in order to bring to light the current state of knowledge in this field. At the same time, the theoretical documentation allowed the presentation of the opinions of some authors regarding the concepts of financial position and economic performance.

- *econometric modeling*: used to provide added information to current and potential investors. For the statistical processing of data, the following software was used: Wessa, P. (2017), Free Statistics Software, Office for Research Development and Education, version 1.1.23-r7, URL http://www.wessa.net/
- *empirical analysis (case study)*: it has been used in all chapters, with the main purpose of confirming and verifying the formulated hypotheses, and also the various opinions found in the specialized literature;
- correlation analysis: used to test the correlation between some of the indicators used in the empirical analysis. This was done by using the Pearson coefficient for verifying the correlation;
- comparative analysis: used for numerous information from the financial statements of the entities in time and in space, both in terms of the basic components of the annual financial statements and also regarding the information presented in the explanatory notes to the annual financial statements;
- the Du Pont analysis method: used to highlight the different percentage with which the influence factors act on the dynamics of the analyzed indicators from one year to the next one;
- *operationalization*, respectively searching for correlations, algorithms, or methods that allow the correlation of the theoretical aspects with reality, but also choosing some indicators considered as representative for the studied concepts;
- *study of synthesis documents*: were taken into account particularly the annual financial statements of the analyzed entities, as well as audit reports, various reports according to the requirements of the Bucharest Stock Exchange etc.;
- participatory observation: by interpreting the results of case studies and issuing personal opinions in the entire content of the paper;
- *graphical representation*: it was manifested in the form of presentation of the results of the empirical analysis in order to increase the quality of the obtained information.

Summing up, the paper was based on studying specialized bibliographical references, the legislation related to the theme of the paper, the annual financial statements of the entities that formed the analyzed sample, various reports issued by the entities, various opinions and sources in electronic form and on discussions with theoreticians and practitioners in the field. Thus, the paper contains 249 bibliographical sources referenced by 243 footnotes consisting of books and

papers published by authors in publishing houses, articles and specialty studies published in various journals or conferences, national and international legal norms, and other sources of expertise (opinions, resources available in electronic format).

Basic financial data were taken from representative companies from the energy sector such as OMV Petrom, Romgaz, Transgaz, Transelectrica, Rompetrol Rafinare, Dafora, Electrica, Nuclearelectrica, Conpet, Petrolexportimport, Oil Terminal, depending on the availability and relevance of the provided information.

In the same time, 35 figures/graphics, 37 tables and 6 annexes were used for a more suggestive representation of the research results.

Starting from the main objective of any scientific research paper, by reporting to the chosen research theme, we mention that the **overall objective** of the paper is the analysis of the annual financial statements (both as a concept and also the empirical way in which they pursue their intended purpose) in the process of assessing financial position and economic performance and identifying ways to improve. In order to carry out the present paper, the following **specific research objectives** have been set in relation to the general objective pursued:

- Positioning the problem of the importance of analyzing the annual financial statements in the current context, the trends and norms relating to the annual financial statements in order to raise stakeholders awareness of the importance of analyzing financial position and economic performance based on the information provided by the annual financial statements;
- The analysis and conceptual delimitation of the concepts of financial position and economic performance and their manifestation in the energy sector, in order to highlight the current state of knowledge in relation to these concepts;
- Proposing models for assessing the financial position in the energy sector, based on the data provided by the annual financial statements, in order to provide additional information on the financial position for the stakeholders;
- Proposing models for assessing the economic performance in the energy sector, based on the data provided by the annual financial statements, in order to provide additional information on the financial position for the stakeholders;

 Analysis of the concept of performance in relation to sustainable development as an instrument that incorporates social, economic and environmental dimensions in order to identify possible correlations between the two concepts.

In order to achieve the proposed research objectives, the following **research hypotheses** were formulated:

- The annual financial statements are complex concepts in relation to which there
 are rules, currents and various interpretations that can be used by stakeholders to
 meet their informational needs;
- Financial position and economic performance represent concepts that are always topical and their manifestation in the energy sector is essential for the national economy;
- Classical approaches used to assess the financial position in the energy sector can be improved by validating new models of analysis;
- The set of models for analyzing economic performance needs to be improved by defining a model incorporating components related to business growth, profitability and risk;
- Sustainable development is a new concept and the companies from the energy sector have the "duty" to volunteer to promote, apply and report on how sustainable development is taking place.

In order to achieve the proposed research objectives, for each established research hypothesis, we formulated the following questions which we sought to provide answers in the paper:

- What are the concepts and norms that characterize the annual financial statements and how can stakeholders be sensitized, by a specific example, of the importance of the information extracted from the annual financial statements in the decisionmaking process?
- What is the overall perception regarding the financial position and economic performance and how do they manifest in the energy sector?

- What are the current limits of the vision regarding the financial position and what alternatives of analysis can be introduced in the energy sector?
- What are the constraints of the economic performance assessment system and which specific features should incorporate an optimal model of performance assessment in the energy sector?
- What is the way to apply the dimensions of sustainable development in the energy sector and what is the correlation between these concepts and the financial performance?

Taking into account the formulated research assumptions, the questions we have been seeking to answer, using the research methods and presenting the results as described, we consider that the specific research objectives, and implicitly the general objective of the research, have been achieved. Moreover, the paper opens up new possible directions of research.

Short content of the chapters

From a structural point of view, the paper is divided into 5 chapters.

The first chapter, entitled "Annual financial statements - source of information for the economic and financial analysis", presents the general context and the issue of the role of the annual financial statements in contemporary economic and financial practice.

The first part of this chapter highlights the current state of research relating to the annual financial statements, while in the second part there are brought to light certain advantages that would be generated by a financial reporting with a higher informational power than the present one.

At the same time, in the first chapter we intended to approach the information contained by the annual financial statements from a qualitative and quantitative point of view. Regarding the qualitative side of the information presented in the financial statements, the question we propose to answer is "Do the annual financial statements provide adequate information in order to be the basis for making optimal decisions?" Obviously, the answer is "Not entirely," because, if the financial statements would provide adequate information, we would not find any wrong decisions. At the same time, we can assume that the information from the financial statements

are largely adequate from a qualitative point of view, but the way of interpretation or their modeling by the stakeholders leads to wrong decisions.

Another aspect to be analyzed refers to the amount of information presented in the annual financial statements. In our opinion, this is far from satisfying the stakeholders. In most cases, it is not sufficient to understand the gross information presented in the annual financial statements, but the stakeholders base their decisions on the processing of this information, according to their informational needs and interests. This differs from one category to another because different categories of stakeholders have different perceptions about the same concepts. For example, current and potential investors perceive performance through the return of their investment, managers are geared towards the overall performance of the companies they run, employees perceive performance through profitability and job stability, and creditors have an interest in the stability of the organization (Pintea and Achim, 2010⁸).

The second chapter of the paper, entitled "Financial position and economic performance - conceptual delimitation" is structured on two basic components.

On one hand, it was meant to highlight the main present approaches regarding the concept of financial position, as well as the main aspects taken into account by the main categories of stakeholders in their efforts to assess the financial position of the entities from the energy sector listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange.

The results of the study showed that there are some basic requirements related to the stakeholders' informational needs regarding the financial position of the entities from the energy sector, and they are related to the appreciation of the concept of business continuity, global solvency, overall liquidity and indebtedness. As a result of the approach it was concluded that the principle of continuity of activity is difficult to assess using mathematical indicators. Instead, the analysis of global solvency, overall liquidity and indebtedness degree showed that over the last five years the analyzed entities from the energy sector had generally satisfactory developments, but also brought to light some entities where the level of the mentioned indicators is one that casts doubt on the existence of a balanced financial position.

Economic performance is a fundamental objective of the economic entities from the energy sector. The profit and loss account provides relevant information for performance

⁸ Pintea M.O., Achim M.O., (2010), *Performance - an elvolving concept*, Annals of University of Craiova-Economic Sciences Series, Vol. no. 38;

analysis, but the assessment of the factors that led to the change of the financial result requires detailed analyzes based on specific techniques. Thus, the second part of the second chapter develops and implements an econometric model to analyze the relationship between pre-tax profit level and reversible asset write-downs. The issues presented demonstrate that the analysis of the impact of impairment on performance is likely to provide precious information to the stakeholders who are using the annual financial statements of companies.

Following this approach, performance was found to be significantly influenced by the magnitude of reversible value depreciations. This influence is demonstrated by the econometric model elaborated and tested in subchapter 2.2.

The third chapter of the paper, entitled "Financial position analysis models", is structured in four parts in which we analyze the financial position in terms of the patrimonial structure and in the way in which the management of the resources is reflected on the financial position, but also the analysis of the financial position as a concept that is characterized by balance and risk.

Thus, if the first part treats the patrimonial structure and the impact on the financial position, the second part starts from the hypothesis that the way in which resources (material, human, financial, technical etc.) are managed within an economic entity is an aspect that can have a significant influence on the financial position of an entity. Applying this axiom in the Romanian energy sector, a sector where financial management often has a high importance in general business management, due to the high degree of investment of financial resources, we can assert that the analysis of the impact that affects the financial position of the entities is desirable to study. The anticipated results of this analysis predict that the financial position of the analyzed entities from the romanian energy sector is often significantly influenced by the way of managing the financial resources of an entity. By correlating these results with broader analyzes, such as those related to bankruptcy risk, we can assert that the usefulness of the study is a high one, by providing decision makers with a set of complex and useful information for making optimal decisions to maximize the benefits that they can obtain.

At the same time, we highlighted the ways of approaching financial balance and the impact and link between this concept and the financial position, but also the antithesis between the balance sheet and the financial balance sheet in the analysis of the financial balance. The results of the study showed that there are significant differences between the analyzes carried out on different types of balance sheets.

The analysis of the financial balance had as a purpose the determination of the value of the basic indicators that characterize financial balance (Net Situation, Working Capital, Working Capital Need, Net Treasury), of the entities from the energy sector, companies that were listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange during the last 8 financial years. At the same time, the analysis aimed to define and apply some indicators expressed in relative magnitude, in order to appreciate the intensity of the unfavorable values of the classical indicators used for measuring the financial balance.

Another useful element of this study is generated by the analysis in antithesis of the financial balance on the basis of the Balance Sheet and the Financial Balance Sheet, which revealed the significant differences between the two approaches.

The last part of this chapter brings to light different approaches regarding the expression of the risk of bankruptcy. The results of the study show that there are quite significant differences in the analysis of the bankruptcy risk made by applying different models, suggesting that the Conan-Holder model is most suited to be used in the energy sector.

The fourth chapter of the paper, entitled "Models of analysis of the economic performance" presents different ways of assessing economic performance in the energy sector.

Thus, two complementary approaches used for analyzing economic performance are presented: the one based on absolute figures and the oen based on relative figures. The final results confirmed both the utility of Du Pont's specific profitability rates in the relative analysis of performance, but also a high dependence on the proposed rates, which, in our opinion is a solid premise for an integrated approach of the concept of performance, both on the basis of absolute figures and relative figures.

At the same time, this chapter highlights two approaches regarding the added economic value: on one hand, the classical approach and on the other hand, an own approach. In our opinion, this approach is a viable alternative to the classical way of assessing performance based on economic added value, bringing an essential surplus of informational value to decision-makers.

At the same time, we highlighted, on one hand, an approach existing in the specialized literature, which expresses the economic growth through a modern indicator of assessing financial profitability. On the other hand, we have proposed our own vision regarding the economic growth of companies, starting with the definition of the concept of economic growth at

macroeconomic level and its transposition at microeconomic level. Thus, although in theory the two approaches would have had to generate unitary images (which, however, were obtained through different approaches and methods of analysis) of the same concept (the concept of economics growth of companies), this did not happen. Practically, the empirical analysis has highlighted the possibility that in a financial exercise, the same analyzed entity is characterized by positive and even solid economic growth, but also by negative economic growth.

In the last part of this chapter we proposed an econometric model for assessing the economic performance of the entities activating in the energy sector, a model incorporating indicators obtained and validated in the previous sections.

In the fifth chapter of the paper, entitled "Assessing performance in the context of sustainable development", we sought to define and propose a new side which, in our opinion, should be found in the content of the annual financial statements, namely sustainable development. Thus, we have attempted to present theoretically the concept of sustainable development (by developing the economic, social and environmental dimension of this concept), as well as identifying possible correlations between non-financial and financial performances.

FINAL CONCLUSIONS, LIMITS AND PERSPECTIVES OF RESEARCH

Final conclusions of research

At the theoretical level, based on the analysis from the first chapter, we can state that the annual financial statements are intended to ensure the informing of the stakeholders. Even though not all of these satkeholders are fully satisfied with the information that they received, they can correlate the information from the annual financial statements with other information they have at their disposal, or they can militate to increase the informational power of the annual financial statements.

The obtained results regarding the informational deficiencies that can be found in the annual financial statements show that there are various aspects, especially at the level of the explanatory notes to the annual financial statements, which, due to their low informational power, can lead to the wrong decisions.

Taking into account these considerations, we can conclude that the direction towards research regarding the annual financial statements should be directed is to provide more information for as many categories of stakeholders as possible. Practically, we believe that to achieve this goal, a process of separating accounting from taxation should be started. The fact that most of the information presented in the annual financial statements is strictly required by the relevant legislation gives birth to the idea that entities prepare annual financial statements as a constraint imposed by law, without realizing that the component of "voluntary reporting" could bring the much more benefits. Including the categories of stakeholders who are obviously disregarded as recipients and users of the information from the annual financial statements (employees, clients, suppliers etc.), despite their little economic knowledge, should take steps to increase the informational power of the annual financial statements, which can bring them greater benefits.

After analyzing the specialized literature and the case study within the first chapter, it was concluded that, in general, the analyzed entities (with some exceptions) prepare the reports by strictly respecting the legal requirements. This kind of reporting satisfies the informational needs of a single category of stakeholders, namely the government.

Thus, we can say that the content of explanatory notes in the annual financial statements is unsatisfactory. Corelating this aspect with the conclusion of Jianu, I., et. al., (2012)⁹, according to which the interest of the investors for the explanatory notes in Romania is low, we can conclude that the informational need of the stakeholders who are really interested on the informative power of these components of the annual financial statements will not be very soon covered. In our opinion, economic entities should consider the benefits that a set of financial statements with a high informative power for stakeholders could generate. At present, entities are focusing on providing the necessary information mainly to the state, without giving much weight to the information needs of other stakeholder categories (eg employees, investors etc.).

From the analysis of the econometric model determined in the last subchapter of the first chapter, it is revealed the relevant information for the stakeholders according to which the profitability that a capital market investment can generate for the companies in the analyzed sector is influenced by the evolution of the ROE indicator.

The analysis of the financial position is a continuous approach of the researchers in the financial and accounting field, and after the analyzes reflected in the second chapter of the thesis it can be concluded that the approaches to this concept are viewed from various points of view. Most approaches suggest that an entity's financial position is reflected by the indicators existing in the balance sheet. The conclusion reached by this study is that the raw information presented in the balance sheet is far from characterizing in this form the financial position of an entity. We believe that only by processing the information from the balance sheet, depending on the information needs of each stakeholder category, can be reached indicators that characterize the financial position of an entity.

Thus, based on the assumption that the balance sheet presents rather a patrimonial structure comprising assets, debts and equity, we consider that the financial position is given by the indicators that measure the interdependence of these elements, depending on the information needs of each category of stakeholders. At the same time, considering that we can judge the financial position as a balance and risk concept, we believe that managers should not be limited to the balance sheet as a tool that provides information for the analysis of the financial position. We consider that another useful tool is the cash flow statement that provides information of a

⁹ Jianu, I., Jianu, I., Guşatu, I., (2012), Study Regarding the Relevance of the Information Disclosed in the Romanian Financial Statement, Article provided by Danubius University of Galati in its journal Euroeconomica, Vol. 2012, Issue 4(31), pp. 21-32;

different nature to that presented in the balance sheet. Moreover, in the decision-making process, stakeholders should consider correlating these indicators with eventual items that are not in the balance sheet but can be detailed in the explanatory notes to the annual financial statements.

The case study developed in subchapter 2.1 shows that globally the energy entities analyzed have satisfactory annual levels of general solvency, patrimonial liquidity and indebtedness degree. However, some economic entities were identified in the study, with important deficiencies in relation to these indicators, with a possible negative impact on a balanced financial position.

Subchapter 2.2 shows that depreciation is a cost that affects the financial result of companies. However, these can not be avoided due to the moral wear and tear or conjuncture factors that lead to depreciation of the assets. The result of the research on representative companies in the energy sector has demonstrated the link between value depreciation and economic performance expressed through profit before tax. Econometric analysis has proven to be a useful tool to demonstrate the link between profits made and depreciation of assets in the energy sector.

Various factors act positively or negatively on the economic performance. Research on factors of influence on economic performance must be a continuous and sustained approach of professional accountants, as the continuous changes to the business economy affect in turn changes in the structure of the factors of influence on performance. Performance enhancement is a fundamental objective of economic entities and the analysis of factors that can influence performance is the role of providing information to amplify the effect of factors that lead to high performance and to minimize the effect of those that negatively affect performance.

The analysis of asset and debt and equity ratios has proved to be a useful tool in the dynamic analysis of OMV Petrom SA. Such analyzes present the undeniable advantage of the time comparison of an entity's financial equilibrium, but also of comparative analysis between entities belonging to a particular sector of activity. By addressing this point, in our opinion only this way can be highlighted the balance sheet as an instrument in which the financial position of an entity is reflected. In other words, without comparisons in space (allowing the determination of the place that an entity occupies within the sector to which it belongs, according to the definition of the "position" concept), the balance sheet remains a simple tool for reflecting the patrimonial structure (even if certain legal rules call it a "state of financial position").

The conclusion of the empirical analysis of the rates of patrimonial structure has revealed an entity characterized by a healthy financial balance as a whole without major fluctuations from one year to the next in the weights of the asset and equity groups. However, we express a slight reluctance with regard to the high volatility of the elements included in current assets and current liabilities. Moreover, the lack of correlation between the share of trade debts in current debts and the share of cash assets in current assets at the level of 2016 makes us recommending greater attention to identifying sources of short-term investment of temporary financial resources at the disposition of the entity.

From the analysis of the relationship between financial management and financial position, there is a close correlation between the financial position (expressed by the Conan-Holder risk model) and financial management (expressed in net assets, working capital and the need of working capital). We note, in particular, the manifestation of a higher intensity of the working capital indicators and the need for working capital, and a lower influence of the net situation. In other words, we can conclude that the financial position is more strongly influenced by the practical way of managing the balance between economic resources and sources of origin (financing of current assets from short-term sources) than by the net wealth of the owners. This is an essential piece of information that should be understood and a motto for any business owner: financial management of the business itself is a greater fortune than wealth generated by the business with a view to liquidation (theory based on the approach of net situation, which shows that the wealth of the business owner lowering the total debts of the total assets, as if the entity ceased to exist).

Following the empirical analysis of the financial equilibrium, it was concluded that at the level of the analyzed sample (the conclusion can be extended to the whole energy sector as far as the stakeholders consider the sample to be representative), there is a financial equilibrium (characterized by Net Treasury as an indicator of both short-term and long-term appreciation) stable. Much more important than this is the fact that the trend of evolution from one year to the next is a positive one, which justifies us to say that the future in this field is a sustainable one.

However, the analysis found that some entities present unfavorable values of the indicators that characterize the financial equilibrium in terms of certain values (assets of shareholders / associates in the event of bankruptcy, short-term financial equilibrium or long-term financial equilibrium). From this point of view, the analysis focused on detailing the impact

that these unfavorable values may have on the financial balance, by proposing indicators expressed in relative amounts. The results of the analysis have shown that there may be objective reasons underlying poor signals of inappropriate use of funding sources. However, some of the maximum limits (which may be considered an equivalent of the materiality thresholds used in the audit) were proposed in the study above which the value of certain indicators should be considered to be of concern for a healthy financial balance.

The usefulness of the study on the analysis of the financial balance is high, as the information provided by such an analysis could be the basis for important decisions regarding the actions or inactions of different stakeholder categories. As it emerges from the study, sometimes it has been found values which characterize an unstable financial balance for entities such as DAFR and RRC. The fact that in 2015 these entities have applied for insolvency shows that this kind of analysis, if made in time and their conclusions are correctly interpreted, can constitute real investment guides for current and potential investors (since all entities of the analyzed sample are listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange).

At the same time, it was concluded from the comparative analysis based on the Financial Balance Sheet and the Balance Sheet that the Financial Balance Sheet offers different results in terms of financial equilibrium (a thesis that is certainly valid for other aspects). The direction towards which financial theory and practice tends to be directed is the promotion of such optional reporting that meets the need to inform the different stakeholder categories. Both practitioners and the financial and accounting scientific environment and business economic analysis need to undertake sustained efforts to raise stakeholders' awareness of the issuance of a wider reporting system (even voluntary reporting), aware of them the value of the information they will get from these reports and analyzes.

The score method has proven to be a useful tool in assessing bankruptcy risk in the energy sector. This approach, however, should not disregard analyzes made by other methods, such as the analysis of financial balance or financial flows (possibly other aspects), all of those contributing to the determination of an entity's overall risk.

Given that bankruptcies will continue to exist, this being the starting point for analyzing bankruptcy risk, we believe that such studies are always topical. We appreciate the hypothesis

confirmed by Posada, M., G., and Mora-Sanguinetti, J., S., (2014)¹⁰ in their study that the introduction of high costs for bankruptcy procedures would lead to mortgages for troubled entities, thus diminishing the number of bankruptcies, but we believe that this approach is not always the best solution. Generated mainly by a too high indebtedness, bankruptcies can not always be avoided by additional indebtedness. In our opinion, bankruptcies should be prevented by periodically developing bankruptcy risk analyzes as presented in this study (or other specialized analyzes) and taking appropriate measures at the right time.

A personal comparison between the bankruptcy risk analysis model analyzed in this study leads us to conclude that, in our opinion, the Altman model is most useful if both bankruptcy risk analysis and reverse-proportionate concepts that involve the absence of bankruptcy risk, concepts such as the continuity of an entity's activity. Although the Altman bankruptcy risk model is a highly standardized and rigid, the literature shows studies that show how easy it can be to change the classification into a risk category or another, depending on the nuanced mode in which it can be looked at concepts such as the working capital (Miroslava, D., 2014¹¹).

At the same time, following the empirical analysis, we can conclude that the Conan-Holder model is the most useful model for bankruptcy risk analysis in the energy sector, especially due to the results of the Dafora and Rompetrol Rafinare analysis.

We believe that the Taffler model of bankruptcy risk analysis has placed the companies to easy in a high category of bankruptcy risk (not less than 8 out of 11 companies have a high bankruptcy risk of at least two years of analysis, and this is also true for the average calculated at the sample level). In our opinion, the model could be improved, not necessarily by revising the variables or weights that are taken into account when determining the score, but by redefining the intervals in which a company may be classified in a risk category or another.

Reffering to the Robertson model, our conclusion is that it is useful when it is applied alongside other models of analysis to confirm or deny the findings of other models.

¹¹ Miroslava, D., (2014), *Which Altman Model Do We Actually Use?*, Article provided by University of South Bohemia in Ceske Budejovice in its journal Acta Universitatis Bohemiae Meridionales, Volume 17, Issue 2, pp. 103-111;

¹⁰ Posada, M., G., şi Mora-Sanguinetti, J., S., (2014), *Are there alternatives to bankruptcy? A study of small business distress in Spain*, rticle provided by Spanish Economic Association in its journal SERIEs, Volume 5, Issue 2, pp. 287-332;

In fact, in a study published by Cîrciumaru, D., et. al., $(2015)^{12}$ it is shown that the risk analysis of bankruptcy risk by applying different models can lead to different results, proposing to correlate these results with other financial aspects of entities such as turnover, profit rates, rates of indebtedness, financial equilibrium etc.

The overall conclusion reached by the present study is that, unconcerned of the model envisaged, the Romanian energy sector (at the level of the analyzed sample, the conclusions being extended to the whole sector) is generally characterized by an average bankruptcy risk, meeting both companies with a sensitive situation (some who have already entered the insolvency procedure, others with a high likelihood of going into this situation), but also solid companies that are not facing the risk of bankruptcy in the near future.

The results of profitability research based on relative figures have highlighted the profit and loss account as an element of the set of annual financial statements that expresses the profitability of the entities under consideration. The absolute figures found in the profit and loss account have the unquestionable advantage of providing a solid information base on the evolution of revenue, expenditure and results over time, as well as on the detailed structure of the various elements within the specific indicators.

The results of the empirical analysis based on the profit and loss account showed a firm (OMV Petrom) with solid and rising profits in 2011-2013, followed by a steep decline in 2014-2015, with a slight recovery in 2016. In our opinion, this decrease is mainly due to the poor management of the company's core business, with sales revenue decreasing while direct sales costs increased, with negative consequences on absolute profitability.

At the same time, we believe that to the poor results of 2014 and 2015 also contributed the inadequate management of financial activity, but also the lack of efficiency of exploration and distribution costs. This highlights the limits of the profitability analysis in absolute figures but opens the opportunity to switch to relative profitability analysis.

However, we must admit that the information power obtained from such an analysis can be increased by correlating this data with other information related to the patrimonial structure, the structure of the capital elements, the general economic context etc. thus, in our opinion, this

¹² Cîrciumaru, D., et. al., (2015), Return Versus Risk. Evidence From Romania, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 1, Issue 43, pp. 7-28;

kind of analysis needs to be complemented by an analysis of relative profitability (based on profitability rates).

Rate-based analysis has proven to be a tool with a high utility and high informational power for stakeholders.

The use of the established rates of the Du Pont analysis highlighted a high dependency between all two groups (verified on the basis of the Pearson coefficient), as demonstrated by their factorial analysis. At the same time, the study showed that among the three pairs of two indicators of the Du Pont method, the closest correlation (dependence) is found between ROA and ROE, this aspect being verified both on the basis of the Pearson coefficient and on the basis of the factorial analysis.

The study of economic value added brings added value to most stakeholder categories that can make decisions based on complex and comprehensive information embedded in the concept of added value as a performance analysis tool. In practice, with the exception of very narrow categories of stakeholders (possibly only creditors who finance exclusively the financing activity, without being interested in other resource-consuming and/or revenue-generating sides), we consider that for most stakeholders is more important the overall view on the entity, including the financial result and the extraordinary result.

In this context, the analysis model as well as the proposed factorial analysis demonstrated the higher utility compared to the classic approach.

The results of this research show that EVA is a comprehensive tool for measuring the financial performance of entities. Our proposed approach has been validated in the case study presented and its extension from the entity level to the entire energy sector (or even to other sectors or even the emergence as an alternative to the classical EVA based analysis system) is a question of validation and acceptance by stakeholders, but primarily by theoreticians and practitioners in the financial-accounting field of business. Thus, we believe that the objectives proposed at the beginning of this study have been achieved, but we believe that business theory and practice should continually refine the methods and systems of analysis used.

Concluding on the results of the econometric model of appreciation of performance, we can assert that simply observing the data in the profit and loss account is not sufficient to quantify its economic performance. Economic performance is a much broader concept and is

based on a number of factors of influence that are not exclusively reflected in the profit and loss account.

The econometric model obtained highlights the impact that the economic growth of firms, the profitability of commercial exploitation activity and the risk of bankruptcy have on their economic performance. On the other hand, the model highlights the complexity of the phenomena that affect the economic profitability.

Moreover, we believe that the proposed model draws stakeholders' attention to the elements that need to be managed with high attention to generate high economic profitability, such as: gross margin in sales, indicators that count in Conan-Holder's bankruptcy risk score, but also on the indicators used to determine the indicator of economic growth of companies.

The results of the sustainable development study show that at the level of the entities analyzed in the energy sector there are different approaches in terms of both the application of the concepts of social responsibility, corporate governance and environmental responsibility as well as how to report on these issues. As regards the application of the concepts, we can admit that each economic entity has the freedom to find its own vision in this respect, related to how to report the application of these concepts, we believe that this must be done in a much greater to ensure comparability between different economic entities.

If we aim to observe the existence or inexistence of a link between the performance of the analyzed entities and their social responsibility we observe that it exists at all levels: we are dealing with highly performing companies that show a high degree of social responsibility (Petrom, Romgaz, Transgaz), but also with companies that have poor performance and show little social responsibility (Petrolexportimport, Dafora).

The above conclusion also applies to the interdependence between corporate governance and performance.

In other words, we can see that we are dealing with companies operating in a developing country where the principles of corporate governance are not yet fully aligned with the trends in developed countries. This mode of manifestation of corporate governance is not specific to Romania alone; In a study published by Duman, A., and Postalci, E., $(2009)^{13}$ it appears that at the level of companies operating on the Istanbul stock market, there are quite a number of

¹³ Duman, A., și Postalci, E., (2009), *Corporate Governance Networks in Turkey*, Paper provided by Izmir University of Economics in its series Working Papers with number 0904;

weaknesses, such as: in 54% of the companies analyzed there are directors who are relatives with significant shareholders, only a quarter of the members of the directorates are independent, directors hold significant shareholdings in 37.8% of the companies analyzed, or in 62.2% of the companies analyzed there are directors' remuneration in the form of share packages.

Own contributions

We believe that our work, by reference to the proposed research objectives, manages in its own way to answer to the research questions. Synthesizing the conclusions of the paper, we can identify the following own contributions that our study brings:

- -Identify the main informational deficiencies that stakeholders may encounter in the financial statements of companies in the energy sector;
- -Evaluation of the main present approaches regarding the concept of financial position, as well as the main aspects considered by the main categories of stakeholders in their approach to assess the financial position of the energy sector entities listed on Bucharest Stock Exchange;
- -Providing an answer to the question "Does the situation of the financial position provide sufficient information for the stakeholders to make economic decisions?";
- -Presentation of the main advantages and limits that the balance sheet or other documents for the appreciation of the financial position have as source of information for the stakeholders;
- -Presentation of key indicators that could be useful to different stakeholder categories in making their economic decisions;
- -Evaluating the impact that reversible value depreciations may have on economic performance in the energy sector;
- -Analyzing how different financial management indicators can influence the financial position of an entity in the energy sector.
- -Analyzing the financial position of the Romanian companies from the energy sector on the basis of specific indicators of appreciation of the financial equilibrium;
- -Evaluation of the main differences between the analysis of the financial balance on the basis of the balance sheet, in antithesis with the analysis based on the financial balance sheet;
- -Presentation of the main advantages that the financial balance sheet would bring to the analysis of the financial balance, and the awareness of the stakeholders towards this approach;

- -Evaluation of the current approaches regarding the analysis of the financial balance from the theoretical point of view and their application in the Romanian energy sector, within a sample of entities listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange;
 - -Elaboration of methods for detailing the financial balance by applying different indexes;
 - -Analyzing the bankruptcy risk;
 - -Presenting theoretically the bankruptcy risk of an entity;
- -Analyzation (from empirical and comparative point of view) by the method of scores the application of different models of bankruptcy risk analysis (Altman, Conan-holder, Taffler, Robertson) in the Romanian energy sector;
- -Issuing an opinion on applying the optimal bankruptcy risk method analysis in the energy sector;
 - -Analysis of economic performance based on relative figures;
- -Presenting the current state of knowledge of the profit and loss account as part of the annual financial statements expressing absolute performance of a company and empirical analysis of these concepts based on the information presented by OMV Petrom in the years 2011-2016;
- -Vertically and horizontally analysis of the key indicators for measuring absolute profitability;
- -Analysis of the evolution over time of Gross Margin, EBIT, Financial Results, Gross Results and Net Result;
- -Expression the forming process of the Gross Profit through EBIT (which has been analyzed through Gross Margin and other specific items) and Financial Result (which in turn has been analyzed through various types of financial income and expenses);
 - -Analyzing the economic performance based on indicators expressed in absolute figuers;
- -Highlighting modern performance analysis models, which are comprehensive, adaptable and capable of meeting the information requirements of each stakeholder category;
- -Presentation of the current state of knowledge in the field of performance analysis based on profitability rates;
- -Proposing an own model of approaching the economic value added of economic value and applying it in parallel with the established model;

- -Presentation of the current state of knowledge in the field of analysis based on the economic value added;
- -Demonstration that the classical method of analysis based on the economic value added is a perfectible;
- -Proposing an own indicator to express the economic growth of firms and the opportunity to use this indicator in a model for assessing the economic performance of firms;
- -Proposing and implementing an econometric performance assessment model in the energy sector incorporating data on entity size, net result formation and bankruptcy risk;
- -Analyzing the concepts of social responsibility and corporate governance, addressing both the literature and how this "ethical behavior" is felt at the level of entities active in the energy field;
- -Evaluation of the extent to which ethical behavior of economic entities (manifested in this case through application and reporting on social responsibility, corporate governance and environmental responsibility) can influence the performance of an economic entity.

Our own contributions are relevant both at the level of the theoretical knowledge through the critical reporting at the level of the specialized literature and at the level of the empirical knowledge through the case studies approached. According to our knowledge, this is the first large-scale research in the Romanian energy sector regarding the financial position and economic performance appreciated on the basis of the financial statements of the entities considered to be representative of the sector. That is why we consider the research is useful for specialists in the sector, managers, investors, financial and governmental bodies, the academic environment and other interest groups interested in the two dimensions of the economic analysis and the situation in the Romanian energy sector.

Limitations of the research

The analysis of economic performance and financial position based on the information provided by the annual financial statements is a complex and comprehensive research theme in which there are many possibilities for approaching. Under these circumstances, although we consider that the work achieved most of the proposed objectives, the exhaustive nature of the theme is difficult to assure. In order to validate and expand research results across the entire

energy sector or even in other sectors of activity, some inherent limits of research should be considered.

First of all, as it is shown in the analyzed sample, it was limited to companies listed in the energy sector listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange. Although the number of these companies is limited, we consider that the representativeness of the proposed models is high because of the significant share of these companies' combined turnover in the industry. At the same time, in order to offer to the econometric models a high representativeness, the observance we aimed at least 15 observations for each proposed independent variable.

In our opinion, the high dependence between ROA, ROE and ROS, but also their presentation in different hypotheses (each rate of return being addressed both as an endogenous variable and as an exogenous variable) highlights the relevance of the information extracted from this kind of analysis, but on the other hand its limits. We can assume that through the cyclic dependence generated by the three rates of profitability analyzed, an image is formed that excludes other elements from the process of appreciating the performance. To this end, we believe that the information obtained in the analysis of profitability based on absolute indicators comes to complement the analysis based on relative indicators with a complementary impact in the process of gathering the appropriate information for making the best decisions.

Another limit of the research is considered to be the case when analyzing the economic value added. When performing EVA analyzes, in our opinion, particular attention should be paid to all the issues underlying the figures from which the EVA calculation is started. The most eloquent example in this respect is the type of amortization methods used or the policies for setting or resuming the provisions. These elements can have a significant impact on profit. If we admit that there are no changes in the methods from one financial year to the next, these elements should not lead to wrong interpretations based on EVA, but if there is a spatial analysis (for example, between several companies operating in the same economic branch), it can lead to the wrong conclusions. In these situations, before starting the analysis, we recommend that you carry out some restatements to start the evaluation from comparable information from the point of view of how they are obtained.

From the analysis of the manifestation of corporate governance and social responsibility for the sample considered, it appears that there is limited access to detailed and high-quality information. The literature has not yet succeeded in imposing certain methodological approaches devoted to the application and analysis of these concepts.

The central question that arises and which should open new directions of analysis is related to the direction of influence and interdependence of the concepts being analyzed. It is hard to judge whether poor performance is an effect or cause of weak social responsibility and corporate governance policies, or whether good performance is a cause or effect of quality policies in the area of social responsibility or corporate governance.

Regarding the other side of the sustainable development, namely that related to environmental protection, the fact that in the sample of entities that we have been looking to analyze, there is only one entity that has presented in the annual financial statements the amount of environmental expenditures, we are cautious to extend the results achieved across the entire energy sector.

Proposals

We believe that both accounting theory and practice should tend towards more ethical behavior in the process of preparing and presenting the annual financial statements, eliminating the idea that creative accounting aims to "cosmetize" somehow the information in the financial statements. We emphasize that there is a real need for creativity in accounting, but not in the sense of distorting (using legal techniques) the information presented in the annual financial statements, but in the sense of finding modern techniques to maximize the quality and quantity of information that characterizes the real and true situation of the entities by maximizing the informative power of the annual financial statements in order to appreciate as accurately as possible the underlying foundations of decision-making.

Given that the analysis relates to an area in which investments continue to play a very important role, especially for quoted entities haven in view, we believe that appropriate information from all stakeholder categories must include elements such as functional balance sheet, financial balance sheet and economic balance sheet.

In order to increase the informative power provided by the explanatory notes to the annual financial statements, we propose to fill them with detailed reports for each main category of stakeholders, on the model offered by the OMV Petrom company mentioned in the study.

The assessment of an entity's financial position and economic performance is often perceived by the general public as being limited to analyzes made on the basis of the annual financial statements, in particular the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account. However, we believe that today's financial reporting system no longer offers sufficient informative potential to assess the performance of an economic entity, and we support the widespread introduction of a supplementary reporting component (voluntary or required by legal regulations) to be considered as ethical behavior in the reporting process.

These considerations are nothing more than ways of expressing the social dimension of sustainable development. Practically, this social dimension is manifested at the level of the companies by the degree of implementation and control of the concepts of social responsibility and corporate governance and responsibility towards the environment.

We believe that the analyzed entities (and not just them) should not be limited to applying and reporting their actions of social responsibility and corporate governance according to a rigid framework (the Corporate Governance Code of Bucharest Stock Exchange). These elements are ways of expressing business ethics, and should be expanded by adding a component of voluntary involvement and reporting. Information such as budgets, forecasts, analyzes and results of social responsibility actions (based on the model offered by OMV Petrom) should be basic information to which any interested person has access.

We can conclude that most of the analyzed entities do not fully understand the concept of social responsibility and corporate governance and are not sufficiently informed about the benefits that these concepts might have for improving financial performance.

Perspectives of the research

As a result of this approach, it is concluded that the vast majority of stakeholders are interested in a little-covered issue in the literature as an element by which the financial position can be defined, namely the observance of the principle of continuity of activity. A main research direction that emerges from this paper involves the identification of economic and financial indicators to express the extent to which the entities under consideration could quantify the way in which compliance with the principle of continuity of activity is ensured. An example could be the use of econometric models to characterize future developments in activity indicators

(especially the aspect related to their financial position), depending on deviations from budgets and forecasts from previous periods.

The different results obtained in the comparative analysis of the balance sheet and the financial balance sheet (in the context of the financial balance analysis) can open up new research directions, such as far more detailed analyzes based on the financial balance, but also raising awareness among stakeholders (except governments) by the fact that the balance sheet in the current form (given that its form is imposed by the legislator) has certain limits, and for a pertinent analysis of the financial position (financial balance) it is often necessary to use derivative forms of the balance sheet.

These approaches are in fact certain action lines of performance improvement.

The main findings of the business growth survey show that there are situations where the two approaches generate similar results, which would induce the idea that they are mutually excluded. At the same time, the study showed that in the 3 of the 7 analyzed years there were significantly different values between the analyzed indicators, which opened new directions of research. In practice, the study suggests that the two business growth indicators can give different images of the same concept (in this case, the concept of economic growth), which makes us carry forward the analysis and look at the two indicators as two independent variables in a model of appreciation of economic performance.

REFERENCES

- 1. Achim, M. V., şi Borlea, S. N. (2011), *Analiza financiara a entitatii economice*, Risoprint Publishing House, Cluj-Napoca, 2011;
- 2. Ailenei, D., şi Mosora, L. C., (2011), *Economia dezvoltării sustenabile*. *Competitivitate şi creştere economică*, Economie teoretică şi aplicată, Volumul XVIII, No. 2(555), pp. 3-10;
- 3. Albu, N., Albu, C., (2005), Soluții practice de eficientizare a activităților și de creștere a performanței organizaționale, Editura CECCAR, București;
- 4. Albu, N., şi Albu, C. N., (2015), *Pledoarie pentru creşterea volumului de informații financiare și non-financiare publicate de entitățile românești*, articol publicat în revista Contabilitatea, expertiza și auditul afacerii, nr. 3/2015, Editura CECCAR, București, pag. 16-21;
- 5. Anderson, R., et. al., (2004), *Board Characteristics, Accounting Report Integrity* and the Cost of Debt, Journal of Accounting and Economics, 37, pp. 315-342;
- 6. Angyridis, C., şi Sen, D., (2010), *Relative and Absolute Preference for Quality*, Paper provided by University Library of Munich, Germany in its series MPRA Paper with number 23103;
- 7. Arych, M. I., (2014), Comparative Analysis of Dynamics and Structure of Financial and Economic Results of Enterprises of Dairy Industry of Ukraine, Economics in its journal Business Inform, Issue 2, pp. 181-185;
- 8. Aste N., Del Pero C., (2010), *Technical and economic performance analysis of large-scale ground-mounted PV plants in Italian context*, Copyright 2010 John Wiley & Sons, Ltd., Published online 29 April 2010 in Wiley InterScience (www.interscience.wiley.com);
- 9. Avram, M., (2013), *The Role Of The Annual Financial Statements In The Management Of The Company*, Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 1, Issue (Month): (February), pp. 13-18;

- 10. Avram, M., Avram, V., (2003) *Situațiile financiare anuale*, Editura Radical, Drobeta Turnu Severin;
- 11. Axel, B., S., şi Jens, K., (2002), *An Applied Econometricians' View of Empirical Corporate Governance Studies*, Article provided by Verein für Socialpolitik in its journal German Economic Review, Volume 3, Issue 3, pp. 295-326;
- 12. Aziri, B., (2014), *Corporate Governance: A Literature Review*, Article provided by Research Centre in Public Administration and Public Services, Bucharest, Romania in its journal Management Research and Practice, Volume 6, Issue 3, pp. 53-65;
- 13. Babonea, A. M., Dumitru, A. P., (2012), *Performance Indicators In Csr In Romania A Link To The Green Economy*, Article provided by Faculty of Economics, Tibiscus University in Timisoara in its journal Anale. Seria Stiinte Economice. Timisoara, Volume XVIII, pp. 410-416;
- 14. Badea, L., (2006), *Study about Markowitz Model Applicability on Romanian Stock Exchange Market*, Article provided by Asociatia Generala a Economistilor din Romania AGER in its journal Theoretical and Applied Economics, Volume 9 (504), Issue (Month) November, pp. 21-24;
- 15. Balcaen, S., Ooghe, H., (2004), 35 Years of studys on Business Failure: An Overview of the Classic Statistical Methodologies and their Related Problems, Vlerick Leuven Gent Working Paper Series 2004/15;
- 16. Balteş, N., şi Vasiu, D. E., (2013), Case Study Regarding The Financial Performance Based On Rates Of Return, For Companies Listed On Bucharest Stock Exchange, Acting In Mining And Quarrying Domain, Article provided by Lucian Blaga University of Sibiu, Faculty of Economic Sciences in its journal Revista Economica, Volume 65, Issue 3, pp. 123-142;
- 17. Baule, R., şi Soost, C., (2016), Pay for performance versus non-financial incentives in small and medium-sized enterprises, Article provided by Inderscience Enterprises Ltd in its journal Int. J. of Entrepreneurial Venturing, Volume 8, Issue 1, pp. 24-45;
- 18. Baum, C. F., et. al., (2007), *The Effects of Short-Term Liabilities on Profitability:*A Comparison of German and US Firms, Paper provided by Boston College

- Department of Economics in its series Boston College Working Papers in Economics with number 636;
- 19. Bălăceanu, V. A., (2009), *The Influences Financial Management In Developing The Future Firm`S Business*, The Annals of the "Stefan cel Mare" University of Suceava. Fascicle of The Faculty of Economics and Public Administration, Volume 9, Issue 2, pp. 112-118;
- 20. Bărbuță-Mişu, N., (2014), *Financial Leverage Impact On Return On Equity For Romanian Listed Companies*, Article provided by "Dunarea de Jos" University of Galati, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Risk in the Contemporary Economy, Proceedings Conference, pp. 271-279;
- 21. Bekic, I., et. al., (2015), Entrepreneurial University Connection Between Growing Companies, Entrepreneurial Capacity And Economic Growth, Article provided by Josip Juraj Strossmayer University of Osijek, Faculty of Economics, Croatia in its journal Economy of eastern Croatia yesterday, today, tommorow, Volume 4, pp. 239-247;
- 22. Beleţu, E. C. (2013), Study About The Interdependence Between The Financial Position And Performance Within The National Forest Administration Romsilva Subunits, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 1, Issue 41, pp. 154-165;
- 23. Beleţu, E. C., (2010), System Of Indicators Used For Analyzing Financial Balance At Dolj County Forestry Department, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 2, Issue 38;
- 24. Berceanu, D., et. al., (2010), *Financial balance basic tool in approaching financial diagnosis for firm valuation*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Finance Challenges of the Future, Volume 1, Issue 12, pp. 36-43;
- 25. Berceanu, D., și Sichigea, D. F., (2006), *Determination Of Company Value By The Approach Based On Assets*, Article provided by Spiru Haret University,

- Faculty of Financial Management and Accounting Craiova in its journal Journal of Applied Economic Sciences, Volume 1, Issue 1, pp. 9-13;
- 26. Berheci, M., (2008), *The Annual Reports and Financial Decisions*, Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, vol. 1, issue 10;
- 27. Berk, J., et. al., (2012), *Fundamentals of Corporate Finance*, Pearson Education, Inc.;
- 28. Bhattacharyya, A. C., şi Phani, B. V., (2005), *Economic Value Added A General Perspective*, Paper provided by EconWPA in its series Finance with number 0504003;
- 29. Bilel, J., şi Abdelfettah, B., (2013), A Theoretical Assessment on Optimal Asset Allocations in Insurance Industry, Paper provided by University Library of Munich, Germany in its series MPRA Paper with number 5353, pp, 30-34;
- 30. Bloom, N., (2013), *Fluctuations in uncertainty*. No. w19714. National Bureau of Economic Research;
- 31. Bocean, C., B., (2008), *Corporate governance quality*, Analele Stiintifice ale Universitatii "Alexandru Ioan Cuza" din Iasi, Volume 55, Issue November, pp. 30-36;
- 32. Bogeanu, A., (2013), Correlations Between The Economic Value Added And The Price Of Shares, Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 2, Issue (Month): (April), pp. 115-122;
- 33. Boghean, F., (2014), *Corporate Social Responsibility One Step Furthertowards*Sustainable Development, Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba Iulia in its journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Volume 2, Issue 16;
- 34. Bolek, M., (2014), *Return On Current Assets, Working Capital And Required Rate Of Return On Equity*, Article provided by University of Information Technology and Management, Institute of Financial Research and Analysis in its journal e-Finanse, Volume 10, Issue (Month): 2 (August), pp. 1-10;

- 35. Bordeianu, D., D., et. al., (2011), *Analysis models of the bankruptcy risk*, Economy Transdisciplinarity Cognition, George Bacovia University, Vol. XIV, Issue 1, pp. 248-259;
- 36. Botez, D., (2014), Subsequent Events And Their Importance In Drawing Up Annual Financial Statements, Article provided by "Vasile Alecsandri" University of Bacau, Faculty of Economic Sciences in its journal Studies and Scientific Researches. Economics Edition, Issue 19, pp. 60-65;
- 37. Bourguignon, A., (2000), *Performance et contrôle de gestion*, Encyclopédie de Comptabilité, Contrôle de gestion et Audit, Ed. Economica, pp. 931-941;
- 38. Bran, N. C., Mărgărit, S. G., Eftene, N., (2011), *IASB Framework Regarding the Harmonization of Financial Statements*, Annals of the University of Petroșani, Economics, Vol. No. 11, Issue (4), pp. 53-60;
- 39. Brezeanu, P., și Al Essawi, M. S., (2011), *The Relation Between Financial Management And Corporate Governance: Analytical Approach At The Level Of The Risk Management Strategies*, Article provided by Economic Publishing House in its journal Management & Marketing, Volume 6, Issue 1, pp. 151-162;
- 40. Brown, J., (2006), What's significant in Value Based Management: an internal perspective, Article provided by Inderscience Enterprises Ltd in its journal Int. J. of Accounting, Auditing and Performance Evaluation, Volume 3, Issue 3, pp. 320-340;
- 41. Burja C., Burja V., (2014), *Key performing factors of leading Romanian companies*, Annals of the "Constantin Brâncuşi" University of Târgu Jiu, Economy Series, Issue 4/2014;
- 42. Burja, C., (2005), *Analiza factorială a valorii economice create*, Analele Universității din Oradea, pp. 391-395;
- 43. Burja, C., (2006), *Analiza poziției financiare reale a firmei*, University of Oradea, Faculty of Economics, The Journal of the Faculty of Economics Economic., Volume 1, Issue 1, pp. 237-241;
- 44. Burja, C., (2011), *Factors Influencing The Companies' Profitability*, Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba Iulia in its

- journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Volume 2, Issue 13, pp. 215-224;
- 45. Burja, C., şi Burja, V., (2009), *An Analysis of the Companie's Grow Capacity*, The Annals of The "Ştefan cel Mare" University Suceava. Fascicle of The Faculty of Economics and Public Administration, Volume 9, No.1(9), 2009, pp, 23-30;
- 46. Burja, C., şi Burja, V., (2013), *Entrepreneurial Risk And Performance: Empirical Evidence Of Romanian Agricultural Holdings*, Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba Iulia in its journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Volume 2, Issue 15, pp. 561-569;
- 47. Burja, C., şi Burja, V., (2014), *Key Performing Factors Of Leading Romanian Companies*, *Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University*, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 4, Issue August, pp. 6-12;
- 48. Burja, V., şi Burja, C., (2010), *Patrimonial Resources' Mamagement And Effects*On The Economic Value Added, Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series

 Oeconomica, 12(2), pp. 608-6015;
- 49. Burja, V., şi Burja, C., (2013), Knowledge Economy and Entrepreneurship in Romania, Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba Iulia in its journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Volume 2, Issue 15, pp. 1-27;
- 50. Burja, V., şi Rus, L., (2012), *Financial Balance And Loans Of The Shareholders To The Company*, Article provided by University of Oradea, Faculty of Economics in its journal The Journal of the Faculty of Economics Economic., Volume 1, Issue 1, pp. 880-885;
- 51. Burja, V., şi Voiculescu, A., (2014), *Qualitative Aspects Of Performance Evaluation Using The Example Of Romanian Economy Sectors*, Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume Special, Issue (Month): (May), pp. 178-184;
- 52. Buşe, L., et. al., (2008), *Economic and Financial Analysis*, Sitech Publishing House, Craiova;

- Buturoagă, C., (2013), Some Hipothesis Regarding Consumer'S Opinions On Assuming Social Responsability, Article provided by Faculty of Management, Academy of Economic Studies, Bucharest, Romania in its journal Proceedings of the INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE, Volume 7, Issue 1, pp. 268-277;
- 54. Caballero, R. J., et. al., (2010), Effective Labor Regulation and Microeconomic Flexibility, Paper provided by Cowles Foundation for Research in Economics, Yale University in its series Cowles Foundation Discussion Papers with number 1480;
- 55. Calinica, R. M., şi Calinica, D., (2012), *The use of Ternary Diagrams in the Analysis and the Mathematical Modeling of Bank Assets Structure*, Article provided by "Dunarea de Jos" University of Galati, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Economics and Applied Informatics, Issue 1, pp. 133-140;
- 56. Calotă, T., și Tănase, A., E., (2013), *Improving the Numbers of Financial Statements*, Journal of Knowledge Management, Economics and Information Technology, Vol. III, Issue 3, June 2013;
- 57. Camilleri, S. J., (2005), An Analysis of the Profitability, Risk and Growth Indicators of Banks Operating In Malta, Paper provided by EconWPA in its series Finance with number 0507021, pp. 32-48;
- 58. Campello, M., şi Giambona, E., (2011), *Capital Structure and the Redeployability* of *Tangible Assets*, Paper provided by Tinbergen Institute in its series Tinbergen Institute Discussion Papers with number 11-091/2/DSF24;
- 59. Căruntu, C., şi Lăpăduşi, M. L., (2012), *Analysis of the Company's Performance Based on the Profit and Loss Account*, Article provided by Ovidius University of Constantza, Faculty of Economic Sciences in its journal Ovidius University Annals, Economic Sciences Series, Volume XII, Issue (Month): 2 (Decembre), pp. 1016-1021;
- 60. Căruntu, C., și Lăpăduși, M. L., (2012), *Measures To Increase The Rates Of Return Based On The Diagnosis Analysis On Factors*, Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin

- Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 3, Issue (Month): (September), pp. 57-68;
- 61. Chang, M., et. al., (2008), *Does Disclosure Quality via Investor relations affect information asymmetry?*, Australian J. Manage. 33;
- 62. Charreaux, G., (2012), *L' analyse financière*, article available at http://gerard.charreaux.pagesperso-orange.fr/perso/articles/ANAFI87.pdf, accessed in 19.07.2015;
- 63. Chirila, E., şi Droj, L., (2011), *Increase In The Role Of The Financial Synthesis Reports For Accession Of The European Structural Funds*, Article provided by University of Oradea, Faculty of Economics in its journal The Journal of the Faculty of Economics Economic, Volume 1, Issue 1, pp. 348-353;
- 64. Chirita, I., şi Grigoraş-Ichim, C., (2009), The Relationship Between Financial Management And The Information Supplied By Accountancy In The Process Of Substantiating The Financial Decisions At The Level Of An Economical Entity, The Annals of the "Stefan cel Mare" University of Suceava. Fascicle of The Faculty of Economics and Public Administration, Volume 9, Issue 2, pp. 238-243;
- 65. Cieply, S., şi Abdesselam, R., (2007), *Interrelations between Assets and Financial Structures: the case of French NTIC firms*, Published in Sixth Scientific Meeting of the Classification and Data Analysis Group CLADAG-2007, Sep 2007, Macerata, Italy. pp.421-424;
- 66. Cîrciumaru, D., (2011), *The Score Models For Analyzing The Bankruptcy Risk.*Some Specific Features For The Case Of Romania, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Revista Tinerior Economisti(The Young Economists Journal), Volume 1, Issue 16, pp. 153-160;
- 67. Cîrciumaru, D., et. al., (2015), *Return Versus Risk. Evidence From Romania*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 1, Issue 43, pp. 7-28;
- 68. Clevenger, T., Baker, G., (2007), Tools to Apply to Financial Statements to Identify Errors, Omissions and Fraud in Business Valuations, Article provided by

- Pepperdine University, Graziadio School of Business and Management in its journal Journal of Entrepreneurial Finance and Business Ventures, Vol. No. 12, Issue (2), pp. 75-86;
- 69. Clotilde, M., (2005), Responsabilite et responsabilit sociale de l'entreprise (Responsability and social responsability of enterprises), Paper provided by Laboratoire de Recherche sur l'Industrie et l'Innovation. ULCO / Research Unit on Industry and Innovation in its series Working Papers with number 108;
- 70. Cole, V., Branson, J., Breesch, D., (2009), *How to measure the comparability of financial statements?*, International Journal of Managerial and Financial Accounting (IJMFA), Vol. 1, No. 4;
- 71. Cole, V., Branson, J., Breesch, D., (2011), *The illusion of comparable European IFRS financial statements. Beliefs of auditors, analysts and other users*, Article provided by Faculty of Accounting and Management Information Systems, The Bucharest University of Economic Studies in its journal Journal of Accounting and Management Information Systems, Vol. No. 10, Issue (2), pp. 106-134;
- 72. Comisia Europeană, (2001), Livre vert : promouvoir un cadre européen pour la RSE;
- 73. Conrick, C. J., (2008), A Study of Entrepreneur and Small Businesses' Required Returns and Empirical Observation of Actual Entrepreneurial Returns Attained, Article provided by Pepperdine University, Graziadio School of Business and Management in its journal Journal of Entrepreneurial Finance and Business Ventures, Volume 12, Issue 3, pp. 93-114;
- 74. Costi, B., et. al., (2014), *Financial Management Of The Company Through The Capitalization Of Financial-Accounting Information*, Article provided by Fundația Română pentru Inteligența Afacerii, Editorial Department in its journal SEA Practical Application of Science, Issue 4, pp. 499-504;
- 75. Cristache, N., et. al., (2011), *Corporate Social Responsability and Organization Policy*, Article provided by "Dunarea de Jos" University of Galati, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Risk in the Contemporary Economy, Proceedings Conference, pp. 225-230;

- 76. Cuadro-Saez, L., şi Garcia-Herrero, A., (2005), *Finance for Growth: Does a Balanced Financial Structure Matter?*, Paper provided by BBVA Bank, Economic Research Department in its series Working Papers with number 0503;
- 77. Damodaran A. (2012), *Investment valuation. Tools and techniques for determining the value of any asset*, 3rd edition, published by John Wiley & Sons, Inc., Hoboken, New Jersey, USA;
- 78. Dănescu, T., (2000), *Conturile anuale*, Editura Dacia, Cluj-Napoca;
- 79. Dănulețiu, A. E., (2006), *Determinarea stării financiare a întreprinderii prin analiza echilibrului financiar*, articol disponibil online la adresa: http://steconomiceuoradea.ro/anale/volume/2006/finante-contabilitate-si-banci/82.pdf, accesat la 18.07.2015;
- 80. De Franco, G., et. al., (2011), The Benefits of Financial Statement Comparability, Journal of Accounting Research, Volume 49, Issue 4, pp. 895–931;
- 81. Deaconu, S. C., (2012), *The Ranking Of Firms From Romania, Alba County Based On Theirs Turnover, Net Profit And Total Debts*, Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba Iulia in its journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Volume 1, Issue 14, pp. 44-55:
- 82. Dobre, E., et. al., (2015), The Influence of Environmental and Social Performance on Financial Performance: Evidence from Romania's Listed Entities, Sustainability journal, Issue 7/2015, pp. 2513-2553;
- 83. Dobrea, R. C., Găman, A., (2011), Aspects of the Correlation between Corporate Social Responsibility and Competitiveness of Organization, Article provided by Faculty of Management, Academy of Economic Studies, Bucharest, Romania in its journal ECONOMIA seria MANAGEMENT / ECONOMY MANAGEMENT series, Volume 14, Issue 1, pp. 236-242;
- 84. Dobroţeanu, L., (2005), *Geneză şi viitor în contabilitate*, Editura Economică, Bucureşti;
- 85. Dragan, M., et. al. (2015), *Analysis Financial Balance As Base Management Company*, Paper provided by "Ekonomika" Society of Economists, Niš (Serbia)

- in its series Ekonomika, Journal for Economic Theory and Practice and Social Issues with number 2015-01, pp. 141-149;
- Bonoj, L., (2010), Financial Indicators For The ImplementationOf An European Founded Investment Project Under SOP IEC Programme Case Study Of A Romanian SME, Article provided by University of Oradea, Faculty of Economics in its journal The Journal of the Faculty of Economics Economic, Volume 1, Issue 1, pp. 344-350;
- 87. Droj, L., (2015), Study Regarding The Profitability Indicators For The Romanian Companies Operating In The Tourism And Leisure Services Sector In The Period Of 2010-2013, Article provided by University of Oradea, Faculty of Economics in its journal The Journal of the Faculty of Economics Economic, Volume 1, Issue 1, pp. 817-824;
- 88. Duman, A., şi Postalci, E., (2009), *Corporate Governance Networks in Turkey*, Paper provided by Izmir University of Economics in its series Working Papers with number 0904;
- 89. Dumitrașcu, R. A., (2014), *The Process of Creating Economic Value Added: Causes, Factors and Implications*, Article provided by Faculty of Finance, Banking and Accountancy Bucharest,"Dimitrie Cantemir" Christian University Bucharest in its journal Knowledge Horizons Economics, Volume 6, Issue (Month): 1 (March), pp. 30-33;
- 90. Dumitru, M., et. al., (2014), *The Use of Intermediate Management Balances as a Performance Management Tool in Electricity Companies*, Article provided by Romanian Statistical Review in its journal Romanian Statistical Review Supplement, Volume 62, Issue (Month): 1 (January), pp. 24-35;
- 91. Ecobici, N., (2010), *Comparative Study of Financial Statements in Anglo-Saxon and Romanian Accounting*, Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Vol. No. 2, Issue (6), pp. 133-148;
- 92. Engle, C.R. (2012), Assessing the financial position of an aquaculture business:using balance sheets, SRAC publication no. 4401, Stoneville, Mississippi, March 2012;

- 93. Feess, E., şi Hege, U., (2003), Safety monitoring, capital structure, and "financial responsibility", Article provided by Elsevier in its journal International Review of Law and Economics, Volume 23, Issue 3 (September), pp. 323-339;
- 94. Flavin, T. J., şi Wickens, M. R., (2003), *Macroeconomic Influences on Optimal Asset Allocation (Digest Summary)*, Review of Financial Economics, Vol. 12, No. 2207-231 (2003);
- 95. Flower, J., (2002), Global Financial Reporting, Palgrave, 2002;
- 96. Focşan, E. I., et. al., (2015), *Du Pont Analysis In The Production And Preservation Of Meat*, Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 1II, Issue (Month): (February), pp. 140-146;
- 97. Frank, J. N. (1959), Accounting for investors, The Fundamental Importance Earning Power, The Journal of Accountancy;
- 98. Franses, P. H., et. al., (2002), *Modelling and forecasting Outliners and Level Shifts in Absolute Returns*, Article provided by John Wiley & Sons, Ltd. in its journal Journal of Applied Econometrics, Volume 17, Issue 5, pp. 601-616;
- 99. Freeman, R. E., (1984), *Strategic management: a stakeholder approach*, Boston, Pitman, ©1984;
- 100. Gadawska, J., (2011), Effect Of Provisions On The Valuation Of A Company, Article provided by Uniwersytet Mikolaja Kopernika in its journal Equilibrium. Quarterly Journal of Economics and Economic Policy, Volume 6, Issue 2, pp. 109-121;
- 101. Gennaro, Z., (2009), *Fiscal policy and the economics of fi nancial balances*, Article provided by Edward Elgar in its journal Intervention. European Journal of Economics and Economic Policies (subtitle initially: Zeitschrift fuer Oekonomie / Journal of Economics), Volume 6, Issue 2, pp. 289-310;
- 102. Georgescu, G., (2013), *The Global Financial Balance and Post-Crisis Sovereign Risk*, Paper provided by University Library of Munich, Germany in its series MPRA Paper with number 50772 available at http://mpra.ub.uni-muenchen.de/50772/, accessed in 18.07.2015;

- 103. Ghiselli, Ricci, R., şi Magni, C., A., (2006), Economic value added and systemic value added: symmetry, additive coherence and differences in performance, Article provided by Taylor and Francis Journals in its journal Applied Financial Economics Letters, Volume 2, Issue (Month): 3 (May), pp. 151-154;
- 104. Gibson, C. (2011) *Financial and Reporting Analysis*, 12th Edition, South-Western Cengage Learning, Mason, USA;
- 105. Giles, D. E., (2007), *Some Properties of Absolute Returns as a Proxy for Volatility*, aper provided by Department of Economics, University of Victoria in its series Econometrics Working Papers with number 0706;
- 106. Grigore, M., (2016), Particularities of Profit and Loss Account Audit and the Production Process in Constructions, Article provided by Ovidius University of Constantza, Faculty of Economic Sciences in its journal Ovidius University Annals, Economic Sciences Series, Volume XVI, Issue (Month): 1 (July), pp. 527-531;
- 107. Gust, M., Panoiu, L., (2013), *Information on Financial Instruments included in Annual Financial Statements*, Management Strategies Journal, 2013, vol. 19, issue 1, pp. 22-28;
- 108. Hada, T., şi Avram, T. M. (2013), *The Balance Sheet, Information Source For Determining The Financial Position Of Entities Listed At The Stock Exchange In Bucharest*, Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba Iulia in its journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Volume 2, Issue 15, pp. 570-579;
- 109. Halaj, G., (2013), Optimal asset structure of a bank bank reactions to stressful market conditions, Paper provided by European Central Bank in its series Working Paper Series with number 1533;
- 110. Hall, J. H., şi Geyser, J. M., (2003), *Are South African Co-operatives Creating Value?*, University of Pretoria>Department of Agricultural Economics, Extension and Rural Development>Working Papers, disponibil la http://ageconsearch.umn.edu/handle/18058, accesat în 08.08.2016;

- 112. Hlaciuc, E., Mihalciuc, C., Apetri, A., (2008), Financial Comunication Through
 The Financial Statements Acording To The International Accounting Settlements,
 Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba
 Iulia in its journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Vol. No.
 1, Issue (10);
- 113. Hoarau, C., (2004), *Comptabilité et management*, Editions Foucher, Vanves, pp. 17-20:
- 114. Holt, P., E., Hein, C., D., (2001) *International Accounting, Fifth Edition*, Dame, Thomson Learning, United States Of America, p.10.2-10.3;
- 115. http://www.rasfoiesc.com/business/economie/Riscul-de-faliment78.php accesat la 06.11.2015:
- 116. https://www.petrom.com_accesat la 12.02.2015;
- 117. Iamandi, I., E., (2010), Etică și responsabilitate socială corporativă în afacerile international (Ethics and corporate social responsibility in international affairs), Lecture notes, Economic Publishing House, Bucharest;
- 118. Iamandi, I., E., (2010), Etică și responsabilitate socială corporativă în afacerile international (Ethics and corporate social responsibility in international affairs), Lecture notes, Economic Publishing House, Bucharest;
- 119. IAS 1 "Prezentarea situatiilor financiare";
- 120. IAS 36 "Deprecierea activelor";
- 121. IAS 39 "Instrumente financiare: recunoaștere și evaluare";
- 122. IFRS 4 "Contracte de asigurare"
- 123. IFRS 5 "Active imobilizate deținute în vederea vânzării și activități întrerupte"
- 124. Ilgaz, D., (2014), *Optimal Capital Structure: Why Do Firms Borrow?*, articol disponibil la http://www.factset.com/insight/2014/3/optimal-captial-structure#.V2I4z9R97eg, accesat în data de 16.06.2016;
- 125. Ilic, M., (2010), *Economic Value Added As A Modern Performance Indicator*,
 Article provided by Prague Development Center in its journal Perspectives of

- Innovation in Economics and Business (PIEB), Volume 6, Issue (Month): 3 (October), pp. 94-97;
- International Financial Reporting Standards, traducere după Editura CECCAR,
 București, 2007;
- 127. Ispas, R. M., şi Simion, D. M., (2010), *The Financial Management Of The Small And Medium Sized Companies In Romania*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 2, Issue 38, Pages: 288-295;
- 128. Ittner C.D., Larcker D. F., (2003), *Coming up Short on Nonfinancial Performance Measurement*, Harvard Business Review;
- 129. Jaballah, E., et. al., (2014), *Quality of financial reports: Evidence from the Tunisian firms*, E3 Journal of Business Management and Economics Vol. 5(2). pp. 030-038, disponibil la http://www.e3journals.org, accesat în 26.05.2015;
- 130. Jakob, S., I., B., (2007), *Can corporate governance learn from public governance?*, Paper provided by University Library of Munich, Germany in its series MPRA Paper with number 13857;
- 131. Jianu, I. (2007), Evaluarea, prezentarea și analiza performanței întreprinderii, CECCAR Publishing House, București;
- 132. Jianu, I., Jianu, I., Guşatu, I., (2012), *Study Regarding the Relevance of the Information Disclosed in the Romanian Financial Statement*, Article provided by Danubius University of Galati in its journal Euroeconomica, Vol. 2012, Issue 4(31), pp. 21-32;
- 133. Jindrichovska, I., (2013), European Research Studies Journal, Volume XVI, Issue 4, pp. 79-96;
- 134. Jorda, H., (2007), Du paternalisme au managerialisme :les entreprises en quête de responsabilité sociale (Towards corporate social responsability), Paper provided by Laboratoire de Recherche sur l'Industrie et l'Innovation. ULCO / Research Unit on Industry and Innovation in its series Working Papers with number 143;

- 135. Joseph, J., (2002), Integrating Business Ethics Programs: A Study of Ethics Officers in Leading Organizations, Business and Society Review, Fall, pp. 309-347;
- 136. Klassen, R. D., şi McLaughlin, C. P., (1996), *The Impact of Environmental Management on Firm Performance*, Management Science 199642:8, pp. 1199-1214;
- 137. Krylov, S., (2012), *Methodological Approach to Company Cash Flows Target-Oriented Forecasting Based on Financial Position Analysis*, Article provided by AccessEcon in its journal Economics Bulletin, Volume 32, Issue 1, pp. 830-836;
- 138. Lal Bhasin, M., şi Shaikh, J. M., (2013), Economic value added and shareholders' wealth creation: the portrait of a developing Asian country, International Journal of Managerial and Financial Accounting (IJMFA), Vol. 5, No. 2, pp.107 137;
- 139. Legea 82/1991 Legea contabilității;
- 140. Lepădatu, G., V., și Pîrnău, M. (2009), *Transparency in Financial Statements* (*IAS/IFRS*), European Research Studies Journal, Volume XII, Issue 1, pp. 101-108;
- 141. Lis, B., et. al., (2011), *The Proposition Value Of Corporate Ratings A Reliability Testing Of Corporate Ratings By Applying Roc And Cap Techniques*, Article provided by Lucian Blaga University of Sibiu, Faculty of Economic Sciences in its journal Studies in Business and Economics, Volume 6, Issue 2, pp. 60-90;
- 142. Lungu, C., I., (2007), Accounting theory and practice on preparing and presenting financial statements, Bucharest, Published by CECCAR;
- 143. Machek, O., (2014), Long-term Predictive Ability of Bankruptcy Models in the Czech Republic: Evidence from 2007-2012, Article provided by University of Economics, Prague in its journal Central European Business Review, Issue 2, pp. 14-17;
- 144. Man, M., și Gădău, L., (2010), *The Profit And Loss Account In Different Approaches. Advantages And Disadvantages*, Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba Iulia in its journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Volume 1, Issue (Month): 12, pp. 152-160;

- 145. Mandru, L., et. al., (2010), The Diagnosis of Bankruptcy Risk Using Score Function, articol available at http://www.wseas.us/e-library/conferences/2010/Cambridge/AIKED/AIKED-12.pdf accesat la data de 06.11.2015;
- 146. Martínez-Carrascal, C., şi Ferrando, A., (2009), *The impact of financial position on investment: an analysis for non-financial corporations in the euro area*, Paper provided by Banco de Espana in its series Banco de Espana Working Papers with number 0820;
- 147. Mateş, D., Hlaciuc, E., Bostan, I., Grosu, V., Domil, A., Socoliuc, M., (2015), Dezvoltări conceptuale și aprofundări privind rolul raționamentului profesional în contabilitatea creativă, articol publicat în revista Contabilitatea, expertiza și auditul afacerii, nr. 3/2015, Editura CECCAR, București, pag. 10-15;
- 148. Mănescu, D. M. V., Ţogoe, G. D., Avram, V., (2013), Accounting Policies Influence Upon the Position and Financial Performance in an Enterprise, "Ovidius" University Annals, Economic Sciences Series, Volume 8, Issue 1, pp. 1363-1366;
- 149. Mărăcine, M., S., (2011), Social Responsability Of Insurance Companies,
 Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 3,
 Issue June, pp. 110-116;
- 150. McGuire, J. B., Sundgren, A., Schneeweis, T., (1988), *Corporate Social Responsibility and Firm Financial Performance*, Academy of Management Journal, vol. 31, n. 4, pp. 854-872;
- 151. Meade J.E., (2012), A Neo-Classical Theory of Economic Growth (Routledge Revivals), published by Routlege, 2 Park Square, Milton Park, Abingdon, Oxon, United Kingdom;
- 152. Mehedinţu, G., (2013), *Studiu privind investiţiile străine directe în România*, articol disponibil la http://www.fin.ase.ro/ABC/fisiere/ABC1_2013/Lucrari/1.8.pdf, accesat în data de 14.03.2017;
- 153. Mica, I. G., (2009), *Profitability And Risk. Essential Coordinates Of Our Existence*, Article provided by Romanian-American University in its journal Romanian Economic and Business Review, Volume 4, Issue 4, pp. 21-30;

- 154. Mihăilă, N., (2014), *Implications Of Foreign Direct Investments On Small Ans Medium Enterprises In Romania*, Article provided by Constantin Brancoveanu University in its journal Management Strategies Journal, Volume 25, Issue 3, pp. 11-17:
- 155. Milne, M.J., Tregidga, H. and Walton, S. (2009), "Words not actions! The ideological role of sustainable development reporting", Accounting, Auditing & Accountability Journal, Vol. 22 No. 8, pp. 1211–1257;
- 156. Milos Sprcic, D., (2007), The Derivatives as Financial Risk Management Instruments: The Case of Croatian and Slovenian Non-financial Companies, Financial Theory and Practice 31 (4), pp. 395-420;
- 157. Miron, V. C. I., Burja, V., (2015), *REVERSIBLE IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS AND THE IMPACT ON ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE*, Annals of the "Constantin Brâncuşi" University of Târgu Jiu, Economy Series, Issue 1, Volume II/2015, pag. 19-24;
- 158. Miron, V., C., I., (2015), *Financial Position And Its Relevance To Stakeholders*, Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 2, Issue April), pp. 356-365;
- 159. Miron, V. C. I., (2015), Financial Balance An Important Objective for the Stakeholders in Romania's Energy Sector, Procedia Economics and Finance 30, pp. 324 335;
- 160. Miroslava, D., (2014), *Which Altman Model Do We Actually Use?*, Article provided by University of South Bohemia in Ceske Budejovice in its journal Acta Universitatis Bohemiae Meridionales, Volume 17, Issue 2, pp. 103-111;
- 161. Mittal, R. K., et. al., (2008), *Challenges of Implementing Economic Value Added*, Article provided by International Management Institute in its journal Global Business Review, Volume 9, Issue 2, pp. 287-298;
- 162. Mnasri, K., şi Abaoub, E., (2011), *Measuring shareholder value in Tunisian banking*, Int. J. of Accounting, Auditing and Performance Evaluation, 2011 Vol.7, No.1/2, pp.120 149;

- 163. Mocanu, F., (2009), *The Influence Of Indebtedness Degree On Companies'*Performances In Wholesale Trade, Article provided by Asociatia Generala a

 Economistilor din Romania AGER in its journal Theoretical and Applied

 Economics, Volume 05(534)(supplement), Issue (Month) May, pp. 256-260;
- 164. Monea, M., (2013), *The Analysis Of Revenues And Expenses Based On Profit And Loss Account*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 1, Issue 41, pp. 14-19;
- 165. Mosionek-Schweda, M., (2014), *The Use Of Discriminant Analysis To Predict The Bankruptcy Of Companies Listed On The Newconnect Market*, Article provided by Uniwersytet Mikolaja Kopernika in its journal Equilibrium. Quarterly Journal of Economics and Economic Policy, Volume 9, Issue 3, pp. 87-105;
- 166. Mousavi, Z., și Soltani, I., (2014), Providing a Qualitative Model to Determine return rate on Human Capital using Hucametric Approach in Mobarakeh Steel Company, Article provided by Human Resource Management Academic Research Society in its journal International Journal of Academic Research in Business and Social Sciences, Volume 4, Issue (Month): 1 (January), pp. 159-177;
- 167. Mullerat, R., și Brennan, D., (2011), *Corporate Social Responsibility: The Corporate Governance of the 21st Century*, Kluwer Law International, The Netherland;
- 168. Munteanu, G., (2010), *Metode de analiză a riscului de faliment*, Revista Română de Statistică, nr. 12, pp. 36-42;
- 169. Murphy, D. S., (2009), *The evolution of public sector financial management in Bulgaria*, International Journal of Managerial and Financial Accounting (IJMFA), Vol. 1, No. 4;
- 170. Necsulescu, E., (2011), Evolutions and Trends in Presenting. The Balance Sheet as a Financial Position Picture of an Entity, Article provided by Danubius University of Galati in its journal ACTA UNIVERSITATIS DANUBIUS. OECONOMICA., Issue 4, pp. 89-104;

- 171. Negescu, M., D., (2005), Financial Information Support in Decision Making, Accounting and Business Data Processing Magazine, issue 9, Academy of Economic Sciences, Bucharest;
- 172. Negrea, A., (2011), Sustenable Development Of The Romanian Economy By Adopting The Chinese Model Of Special Economic Zones, Article provided by University of Oradea, Faculty of Economics in its journal The Annals of the University of Oradea. Economic Sciences, Volume 1, Issue (Month): 2 (December), pp. 103-108;
- 173. Niculescu M., Lavalette G., (1999), *Strategii de creștere*, Editura Economică, București;
- 174. Nistor, I., A., (2009), *Changes in Japanese corporate governance*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal <u>Finance Challenges of the Future</u>, Volume 1, Issue 10, pp. 144-149;
- 175. Nitu, C., (2012), *The Impact Of Financial Structure On The Return On Equity Of Romanian Companies*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Revista Tinerior Economisti(The Young Economists Journal), Volume 1, Issue (Month): 18 (April), pp. 7-12;
- 176. OMFP 1286/2012 pentru aprobarea Reglementărilor contabile conforme cu Standardele Internaționale de Raportare Financiară aplicabile societăților comerciale ale căror valori mobiliare sunt admise la tranzacționare pe o piață reglementată;
- 177. OMFP 1802/2014 pentru aprobarea Reglementărilor contabile privind situațiile financiare anuale individuale și situațiile financiare anuale consolidate;
- 178. OMFP 2844/2016 pentru aprobarea Reglementărilor Contabile conforme cu Standardele Internaționale de Raportare Financiară;
- 179. Onica, M. C., (2012), *The Impact of the Application of IFRS on Reporting the Financial position*, Article provided by "Dunarea de Jos" University of Galati, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Risk in the

- Contemporary Economy, Proceedings Conference, XIIIth Edition, 2012, pp. 335-340 Galati, Romania;
- 180. Onica, M. C., et. al., (2015), Comparative Analysis Regarding The Study Of The Financial Balance Of Companies Listed On The Stock Market, Article provided by "Dunarea de Jos" University of Galati, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Risk in the Contemporary Economy, Proceedings Conference, Volume 2015, pp. 509-525;
- 181. ORDIN BNR Nr. 27 din 16 decembrie 2010 pentru aprobarea Reglementărilor contabile conforme cu Standardele Internaționale de Raportare Financiară, aplicabile instituțiilor de credit;
- 182. Ospishchev, V. I., şi Nagornaja, I. V., (2009), *Theoretical Substantiation Of Main Constituents Of Financial Position Of An Enterprise: Reliability, Solvency And Financial Stability*, Article provided by Danubius University of Galati in its journal Euroeconomica, Issue 1(22), pp. 35-39;
- 183. Paliu-Popa, L., şi Cosneanu, L., (2011), *Profit and loss account in the international context*, Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 2, Issue (Month): (May), pp. 18-25;
- 184. Pan, X., et. al., (2014), Relationship between Corporate Social Responsibility and Financial Performance in the Mineral Industry: Evidence from Chinese Mineral Firms, Sustainability journal, Issue 6/2014, pp. 4077-4101;
- 185. Parnes, D., (2011), *Corporate Governance and Corporate Creditworthiness*, Article provided by MDPI, Open Access Journal in its journal Journal of Risk and Financial Management;
- 186. Pavel, R. M., (2015), Study on the financial balance for the companies in hotel industry, listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange, Article provided by Asociatia Generala a Economistilor din Romania AGER in its journal Theoretical and Applied Economics, Volume XXII, Issue II, pp. 229-237;
- 187. Pătruțescu, M., și Şerban, C., (2014), Use of Internal Control by the Management for the Evaluation of Information Contained in Annual Financial Statements,

- "Ovidius" University Annals, Economic Sciences Series, Volume XIV, Issue 1, pp. 700-703;
- 188. Petrescu, S., (2010), *Analiză și diagnostic financiar-contabil*, Editura CECCAR, București, 2010;
- 189. Petrescu, S., şi Apostol, C., (2009), *Value Creation Analysis. Economic Value Added*, Article provided by Asociatia Generala a Economistilor din Romania AGER in its journal Theoretical and Applied Economics, Volume (Year): 05(534) (supplement), Issue 05 (534) (supplement) (May), pp. 118-123;
- 190. Petrişor, M., B., şi Lupu, D., (2013), *The Forecast Of Bankruptcy Risk Using Altman Model*, Article provided by Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava, Romania, Faculty of Economics and Public Administration in its journal The USV Annals of Economics and Public Administration, Volume 13, Issue 2, pp. 154-161;
- 191. Pham, T. H., et. al.,(2012), The impact of financial management practices and financial attitudes on the relationship between materialism and compulsive buying, Journal of Economic Psychology Volume 33, Issue 3, pp. 461–470;
- 192. Pintea M.O., Achim M.O., (2010), *Performance an elvolving concept*, Annals of University of Craiova-Economic Sciences Series, Vol.no. 38;
- 193. Pociovalișteanu, D., M., et. al., (2010), Aggregate Dimensions Used In Carrying Out The Financial Balance Of The Economic Entity In Financial Vision, The Annals of the "Stefan cel Mare" University of Suceava. Fascicle of The Faculty of Economics and Public Administration, Volume 10, Issue 1, pp. 125-134;
- 194. Popa-Lala, I., şi Aniş, C. N., (2010), Some Aspects Regarding The Performance Indicators Used In The Management Of A Company, Article provided by University of Oradea, Faculty of Economics in its journal The Journal of the Faculty of Economics Economic, Volume 1, Issue (Month): 2 (December), pp. 450-455;
- 195. Posada, M., G., şi Mora-Sanguinetti, J., S., (2014), *Are there alternatives to bankruptcy? A study of small business distress in Spain*, rticle provided by Spanish Economic Association in its journal SERIEs, Volume 5, Issue 2, pp. 287-332;

- 196. Price Waterhouse Coopers, (2014), IFRS and US GAAP: similarities and differences;
- 197. Priermeier, T., (2005), *Finanzrisikomanagement im Unternehmen*, Ed. Vahlen, Munchen;
- 198. Puican, L., (2015), *Utility Of Annual Financial Statements In The Management Process*, Article provided by Constantin Brancusi University, Faculty of Economics in its journal Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 3, pp. 164-169;
- 199. Puican, L., și Țogoe, G. D., (2012), *Annual Financial Statements Instrument Used In The Management Of Economic Entities*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 2, Issue 40, pp. 175-180;
- 200. Pup, A., (2012), *Work Ethics In Romanian Companies (I) Emprirical Evidences*, University of Oradea, Faculty of Economics, <u>The Journal of the Faculty of Economics Economic</u>, Volume 1, Issue 1 (July), pp. 568-574;
- 201. Rascolean, I., și Moea, A., (2014), *Some aspects regarding balance sheet analysis*, Article provided by University of Petrosani, Romania in its journal Annals of the University of Petrosani Economics, Volume 14, Issue 1, pp. 291-296;
- 202. Răscolean, I., et. al., (2012), *Predictive Analysis Software for Modeling The Altman Z-Score Financial Distress Status of Companies*, Article provided by University of Petrosani, Romania in its journal Annals of the University of Petrosani Economics, Volume 12, Issue 3, pp. 231-240;
- 203. Răscolean, I., şi Monea, A., (2014), Some aspects regarding meaning of intermediate management balances, Article provided by University of Petrosani, Romania in its journal Annals of the University of Petrosani Economics, Volume 14, Issue 1, pp. 297-304;
- 204. Reynaud, E., (2003), *Développement durable et entreprise : vers une relation symbiotique*, Journée AIMS, Atelier développement durable, ESSCA Angers, pp. 1-15;

- 205. Ristea M., (1997), *Contabilitatea rezultatului intreprinderii*, Ed. Tribuna Economica, Bucuresti;
- 206. Risti, L., (2009), Cosiderations Regarding The Organisation Of Financial Management Of The Economic Entities, The Annals of the "Stefan cel Mare" University of Suceava. Fascicle of The Faculty of Economics and Public Administration, Volume 9, Issue 2, pp. 223-230;
- 207. Roberts, C., Weetman, P., & Gordon, P. (2008) *International corporate reporting A comparative approach (Fourth ed.)*, Edinburgh: Pearson Education Limited;
- 208. Rodgers, T., (2007), Measuring Value Added in Higher Education: A Proposed Methodology for Developing a Performance Indicator Based on the Economic Value Added to Graduates, Education Economics, Volume 15, Issue 1, pp. 51-74;
- 209. Rosemary, O., (2012), Accounting Clarity through the Proposed Two Column Profit and Loss Account; A Comparative Study of Accountants and Investors Perceptions, Article provided by Asian Economic and Social Society in its journal Asian Economic and Financial Review, Volume 2, Issue (Month): 8 (December), pp. 921-934;
- 210. Rus, L., şi Farcaş, M., (2011), *The Composition And Structure Of Financial Reporting Similarities And Differences In The Case Of Air Transport Companies*, Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba Iulia in its journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Volume 2, Issue 13, pp. 295-308;
- 211. Samadiyan, B., et. al., (2013), *Relative and Differential Information Content of Economic Value Added, Earnings, Operating Cash Flow and Stock Return*, Article provided by Asian Economic and Social Society in its journal International Journal of Asian Social Science, Volume 3, Issue (Month): 1 (January), pp. 29-37;
- 212. Schmidt, M., (2016), Asset Structure Explained. Definitions, Meaning, and Examples from Industry, Business Encyclopedia, ISBN 978-1-929500-10-9, disponibil la https://www.business-case-analysis.com/asset-structure.html, accesat în 16.06.2016;

- 213. Sharipov, I., (2015), Contemporary Economic Growth Models And Theories: A Literature Review, Article provided by Centre for European Studies, Alexandru Ioan Cuza University in its journal CES Working Papers, Volume 7, Issue 3, pp. 759-773;
- 214. Shleifer, A., şi Vishny, R., (1997), *A Survey of Corporate Governance*, Journal of Finance, No. 52, pp. 737-783;
- 215. Sibilkov, V., (2009), *Asset liquidity and Capital Structure*, Article provided by Cambridge University Press in its journal Journal of Financial an Quantitative Analysis, Volume 44, Issue 05 (Octomber), pp. 1173-1196;
- 216. Siminica, M. şi Stefan, I. O. (2012), *The Impact Of The Financial Crisis On The Financial Position Of Companies Listed On Bucharest Stock Exchange*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 3, Issue 40, pp. 17-30;
- 217. Siminică, M., Cîrciumaru, D., Ganea, M., (2008), *The Effects of Reevaluating the Balance Sheet on the Financial Standing of the Company*, Paper provided by University Library of Munich, Germany in its series MPRA Paper with number 12150:
- 218. Siminică, M., et. al., (2011), *A study regarding the return on equity of romanian companies*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 4, Issue (Month): 39 (May), pp. 267-276;
- 219. Socea, A. D., (2010), *The Balance Sheet and the Financial Position of the Enterprise, Article provided by Ovidius University of Constanta*, Faculty of Economic Sciences in its journal Ovidius University Annals, Economic Sciences Series, Issue 2, pp. 738-743;
- 220. Sooriyakumaran L., Velnampy T., (2013), Disclosures and impacts of impairment of non-current assets in the financial statements: A study on listed manufacturing companies in Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) in Sri Lanka, Merit Research Journal of Accounting, Auditing, Economics and Finance, Vol. 1(6), pp. 122-133;

- 221. Stancu, I., Bălu, F., (2007), *Utilizarea metodologiei VaR pentru măsurarea și prevenirea riscului valutar*, Revista ECTAP, articol disponibil la http://store.ectap.ro/articole/54.pdf accesat în data de 04.11.2015;
- 222. Stănescu, C. F., şi Simion, L. M., (2011), *Financial Risk Management*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 1, Issue 39, pp. 132-137;
- 223. Stoian, F., et. al., (2009), Financial Statements Understandability Based An Explanatory Notes, Article provided by Faculty of Sciences, "1 Decembrie 1918" University, Alba Iulia in its journal Annales Universitatis Apulensis Series Oeconomica, Volume 1, Issue 11;
- 224. Stoyu, I. Ivanov, et. al., (2014), *An Empirical Examination of Negative Economic Value Added Firms*, Article provided by The Institute for Business and Finance Research in its journal The International Journal of Business and Finance Research, Volume 8, Issue 1, pp. 103-112;
- 225. Suciu, G., (2013), *Analysis Of Financial Balace Using Rates*, Constatin Brancusi University of Targu Jiu Annals Economy Series, Volume 4, Issue August, pp. 29-34;
- 226. Sulger, R. M., (2008), *Valoarea economică adăugată. O cercetare empirică.*, Revista OEconomica, issue 01, pp. 149-188;
- 227. Svasta, M., (2009), Existence crises of actual financial management systems, Article provided by Faculty of Management, Academy of Economic Studies, Bucharest, Romania in its journal Economia. Seria Management, Volume 12, Issue 1 Special, pp. 23-28;
- 228. Şerban, D., (2012), *Creating a business ethics program*, Paper provided by University Library of Munich, Germany in its series MPRA Paper with number 39694;
- 229. Ştefan, I. O. (2012), The Evolution Of Profitability Of Romanian Enterprises From Key Areas Of Activity During The World-Wide Financial Crisis, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business

- Administration in its journal Annals of Computational Economics, Volume 3, Issue 40, pp. 177-186;
- 230. Ştefea, P., Pelin, A., Viaşu, I., (2012), Accounting Statements Information Relevance and Integrity in a Global Management Environment, "Ovidius" University Annals, Economic Sciences Series, Volume XII, Issue 2/2012, pp. 1372-1376;
- 231. Tabără, M., (2010), *Financial valuation of business. A new approach*, Article provided by Danubius University of Galati in its journal Euroeconomica, Issue (Month): 25 (October), pp. 96-104;
- 232. Tabără, N., şi Vasiliu,A., (2013), *Determinants Of Economic Value Added. Empirical Evidence From Romanian Market*, Article provided by Danubius University of Galati in its journal Euroeconomica, Issue (Month): 1(32) (May), pp. 5-15;
- 233. Tache, I., (2007), *Măsurarea valorii create pentru acţionari*, Article provided by Romanian Society for Economic Science, Revista OEconomica in its journal Revista OEconomica, Issue 1, pp. 153-189;
- 234. Taulea (Samara), S. (2009), *The Consequences of Accounting Standardization and Harmonization over the Concept of Financial Position*, Article provided by University of Petrosani, Romania in its journal Annals of the University of Petrosani-Economics, Volume 9, Issue 4,pp. 283-288;
- 235. Tetlock, P., C., (2011), All the News That's Fit to Reprint: Do Investors React to Stale Information?, Rev. Financial Studies. 24, pp. 1481-1512;
- 236. Todea, N., Udrea, A. M., Cioca, I. C., (2013), Effects of the Option "Fair Value" on the Entity's Financial Position and Assets, "Ovidius" University Annals, Economic Sciences Series, Volume XIII, Issue 1/2013, pp. 1524-1528;
- 237. Trandafir, R. A., şi Mirea, M., (2013), *The Analysis of the Economic and Financial Performance Based On the Rates of Return in Hospitality Industry Companies On the Romanian Seaside*, Article provided by Ovidius University of Constantza, Faculty of Economic Sciences in its journal Ovidius University Annals, Economic Sciences Series, Volume XIII, Issue (Month): 1 (May), pp. 1537-1542;

- 238. Vasilescu, L., (2011), Assessing the firm performance through the financial ratios, Analele Universității "Constantin Brâncuşi" din Târgu Jiu, Seria Economie, Nr. 3/2011, pp. 159-166;
- 239. Vasilescu, L., G., (2007), *Corporate Governance And Financial Globalization*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Revista Tinerior Economisti(The Young Economists Journal), Volume 1, Issue 8, pp. 11-20;
- 240. Vasilescu, L., şi Popa, A., (2011), *Economic Value Added: Pros and Cons*, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Finance Challenges of the Future, Volume 1, Issue (Month): 13 (December), pp. 60-65;
- Văidean, V. L., (2014), On Financial Performance and Capital Structure of Romanian Companies, Article provided by University of Craiova, Faculty of Economics and Business Administration in its journal Finance - Challenges of the Future, Volume 1, Issue (Month): 16 (December), pp. 151-157;
- 242. Velez-Pareja, I., (2001), *Economic Value Measurement: Investment Recovery and Value Added IRVA*, Paper provided by MASTER CONSULTORES in its series PROYECCIONES FINANCIERAS Y VALORACION with number 002404;
- 243. Veronel, A., et. al., (2012), Financial Annual Statements Source of Information for Determining the Company's Financial Position and Performance, "Ovidius" University Annals, Economic Sciences Series, Volume XII, Issue 2, pp. 982-986;
- 244. Voinea, M. M., (2015), Why Is Important To Do The Performance Analysis?, Article provided by Fundația Română pentru Inteligența Afacerii, Editorial Department in its journal SEA - Practical Application of Science, Issue (Month): 7 (April), pp. 593-596;
- 245. Wessa, P. (2017), Free Statistics Software, Office for Research Development and Education, version 1.1.23-r7, URL http://www.wessa.net/
- 246. Wheeler D., Colbert B., Freeman R. E., (2003), Focusing on Value: Reconciling Corporate Social Responsibility, Sustainability and a Stakeholder Approach in a Network World, Journal of General Management, vol. 28, n. 3, pp. 1-28;

- 247. Xu, Z., şi Xu, N., (2013), Research on the Optimal Allocation of Assets Structure and Corporation Management Performance: A Case Study of China Textile Machinery Co., Ltd, Asian Journal of Business Management 5(4): ISSN: 2041-8744; e-ISSN: 2041-8752, pp. 332-338;
- 248. Zuca, M., (2006), *Modele și definiții privind situațiile financiare*, The Journal of the Faculty of Economics Economic Science Series, Vol. 2, pp. 398-407;
- 249. Zucchella, A., (2007), Network Social Responsibility, Symphonya. Emerging Issues in Management, University of Milano-Bicocca, Issue 2, Ethics in Global Supply Chains.